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THE COURT: Counsel, before we resume this morning
and before we bring the jury into the courtroom, there are a 
few issues that should be resolved.

We had the opportunity to discuss at some length 
in Chambers, and i discussed them with each of you individual 
on Friday. Before we actually bring any members of the panel 
in, let me indicate for the record what it is that I think wej 
should do and what occurred. j

on Thursday we concluded this trial at approximate^ 
10:00 o'clock in the morninc. some time between 10:00 and 
11:00 : was informed by Judge Natal, who is in the midst of a 
homicide trial, that he believes four jurors from this trial 
were watching that trial.

I asked the Sheriff's Officer to upstairs to try 
and bring them down here, so that I could speak to them on 
the record individually, and ask them not to continue to watc 
the trial.

In the process three of the four apparently left 
the building and did not ever return to that courtroom, after 
the break in that tria.. One of them did, however, and that 
is the juror seated in Seat Number 1, who is Juror Number 138

At that point I asked that Juror Number 1 be brough 
in this courtroom. 1 did not speak to him in any method, 
other than on-the-record, and on the record I told Juror Num- 
Iwr 1 that although I had no authority and no right to direct
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him not to continue watching that trial, it was certainly my 
strong preference that he not watch it.

He did not respond verbally to my request. He just 
stared at me, in effect kept looking at me. but he did not 
indicate verbally whether he would or would not continue 
watching that trial.

The other jurors who it was reported to me were 
watching some portion of that trial, were Juror Number 281 in 
Seat 15, as well as Juror Number 343 in Seat 10, and there wai 
a fourth juror who it was not possible for the Sheriff's 
Officer to remember that person's seat number. Perhaps we cai 
ascertain that today. We will have to do that.

What I would be inclined to do under the circum­

stances is have each of those jurors com» in iruSividually.

I would explain to each one that he cr she did nothing wrong 
by watching that trial, that I had not given any instruction 
to them on that subject and, therefore, they should not con­

sider my question to them about a trial as any type of 
criticism, because clearly they did nothing wrong.

The questions 1 would ask each of them would be how 
did they find out there was a homicide trial going on in 
another courtroom, what did they see in that courtroom, did 
they talk among themselves or with anybody else about what 
they saw and heard, what impact, if any, would that trial hav. 
on the jurors' ability to be fair and impartial In this case

lil
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counsel, are there any additional questions that 
either of you would lihe the Court to ask of these jurors, 
and is there any objection or consent with respect to the
information that I have given you and how it is I believe we 
should proceed?

Mr. Aronow?

MR. ARONOW: your Honor, when you indicated bring
them in, I take it you mean individually in Chambers?

THE COURT: Individually.

MR. ARCNOW: In Chambers with counsel present and
the Court Reporter, not in the courtroom?

the COURT: That hasn't been decided. It is an ope: 
public cccoc. .

not do it in Chambers.

MR. ARONOW: Number One, Judge, I t.Vink that is the
appropriate thing, to do that. We are not here to chastise 
these individuals. We are here to find out in private 

basically whether anything they saw would have influenced the^ 
The added part of being in a courtroom here with 

everyone else puts added pressure on them. i think we are mode 
irlcely to get , response from them for the reasons why your 
Honor wanted to ask certain questions from them, if we have a
conference with them on the record in chambers with counsel 
present.

the court- well, there are certain competing con-

fe : ■
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siderations. One is that proceedings involving trials are 
open to the public and are open proceedings. I have confi­

dence that I will be able to speak to these people and not 
put them on the spot.

This is not the first time this has happened. I 
don't want to say it is not the- first time I had jurors go to 
another courtroom. This is the first time 1 am aware that it 
happened during my tenure on the Bench.

Many times I have situations where there has been i 
some inadvertent reading of a newspaper, and I had to questio, 
iurors individually, see if they were impacted. i have done 
it always in open court, where I believe it should be done.

1 believe there are strong reasons why proceedings 
involving the Court and involving t.he trial should be conduetjd 
in public.

Mr. Leiner.

MR. LEINER: I have no objection to the manner in
Which your Honor wishes to proceed this morning, in regards tc 
the questioning of the jurors.

THE COURT: Ver, good. We need to be off-the-
record one second.

(Discussion off-the-record.) 
following colloquy at SIDEBAR;

THE COURT: Another issue we discussed in Chambers
is the fact th.t t.hroughout the trial, at least .art of it.
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Trial 7

there has been an elderly gentleman who does not seem to be 
related to any of the witnesses to this case, who has been in 
the courtroom.

Mr. Leiner, you informed me that you saw him 
socializing with one of the jurors, which would lead to possi 
bly that he is related to her in some way, maybe her husband. 
He is in the courtroom now.

I don't have the right to ask him to leave the 
courtroom. Therefore, I am going to reconsider what I said 
earlier and I will speak to the jurors in camera on the recor(

Also, I will speak with them, ask him who he is, 
who he is related to, and whether he has discussed what he 
has seen during this trial with his relative. I may as well 
do it now.

In the third row there is a gtn»lei'i.n wearing a graj 
coat with black collar and striped sweater.

Sir, I don't mean to single you out or embarrass yovi 
in any way. We have noticed that you have been present in the 
courtroom during portions of the trial.

Are you related in some way to any member of the 
jury panel?

A VOICE; Yes.

THE COURT: Can you tell us what the seat number is
of the person you are related to or show me the seat?

A VOiCE; Counting from left to right, the fourth

* -iV.
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seat.

THE COURT: On the front or back row?
A VOICE: Front row.

the COURT: You are including the metal chair, the
makeshift chair?

A VOICE: NO. Excluding the first chair. She would
be in the fourth chair.

the court: That would be, for our purposes, Seat
Number 5?

A VOICE: Yes.

the COURT: The way you are counting is Seat Number
4. That is Juror Number 41-. That juror is related to you? 
She is your wife?

A VOICE: My wife.

the COURT: You have been present in the courtroom
at some time when the jury has not been in the courtroom. For 
example, the discussion we just had concerning some of the 
jurors watching the trial upstairs has occurred while you have 
been in the coi>rtroom.

if you come forward a little more, you can hear me a 
bit better.

A VOICE: All right.

the COURT: You can be seated right there between th ,

two attorneys, if you would. i am going to ask you whether 
you have seen anything that has occurred when tho jury hasn't
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been in the courtroom, or have you left the courtroom during 
those times? Do you recall one way or the other?

A VOICE: It was sporadic. If i wanted to get a
cup Of coffee, I got a cup of coffee. If i wanted to go out
and read, I read, it didn't matter whether the panel was 
here or not.

the COURT: Vou are absolutely right. I want to
emphasise this is an open public courtroom. Vou heard me say 
that a few moments ago.

A VOICE: The primary reason is I don't like my wif,
traveling by herself, and I take her in the mornxng, i stay
here all day with her, and take her home. That's why I am in 
this court.

the court: as I indicated a second ago, you have
absolutely every right to do that, you have every right to 
watch this trial. You have every right to watch .r,y trials. 
These are open puolic courtrooms.

My only concern, the only reason I am even talking 
to you about it, is I wanted to be sure that you and she have 
not discussed the trial in a. y way.

A VOICE: No.

the COURT: You have not?
A VOICE: No.

the court, you are absolutely sure about that?
A VOICEt Positive.

.
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THE COURT: If you saw things that occurred when
the jury was not in the room, diid you discuss any of these 
things with your wife?

A VOICE: No.

THE COURT: Counsel, any further questions you woul 1

like to ask this gentleman?

MR. ARONOW: Nothing.

MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. You can continue
being seated where you are. you have every right to remain 
in the courtroom. Thank you for speaking to me.

A VOICE! Thank you.

THE COURT: I am geing to begin speaking to the
first of the jurors, who we know some of them ara, and in the 
meantime we can hopefully ascertain tno identity of the fourtl 
person. He are trying to find the sheriffs ofiicer who 
brought this to my attention last week.

If we can ask Don to bring around the jurors, we 
will go in seat order, l already spoke to Juror Number 1, 
but I did not ssk him whether he was influenced in any way.
Why don’t we start with the juror in Seat Number 1, Juror 
Number 138.

Counsel, can l ask you both to please approach for
a second.

MR. .V»C»OW: yes.

^ . .
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(Juror enters courtroom.)
THE COURT: Good mornin'j. We will be witll you in

one second.
FOLLOWING COLLOQUY AT SIDEBAR:

THE COURT: One consequence of spea)cing to the

jurors in my office is that T ma)ie it a practice not to have 
defendants in the back area, and not to have defendants in my 

office.

The defendant, I understand, is not willing to waiv4 

his right to be present during these interviews or voir dire 

sessions with the members of the jury.
Under the circumstances, I am going to return to my 

original decision and I am going to do it in open court. I 
don't see a reason to remove people from the courtroom. It 
is an open public courtroom and I don't 3ee any prejudice in 
here. I don't believe there is any prejudice to either side 
resulting from keeping people in the courtroom.

I believe these members of the jury can conduct 
themselves appropriately and give me honest answers, whether 
there ore «pactators ir. *;lie courtroom or not. 1 will proceec 

in open court.
FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS IN OPEN COURT:

THE COURT: Juror Humber 1, good morning. You and
I had the opportunity to chat on Thursday briefly, and again 
I want to emphasize to you I do not mean to pit you on the

■ ,,I.
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spot. 1 will be speaking to the other jurors as well who 
were upstairs in Judge Natal's courtroom, and I want to re­

emphasize what I said to you before, that you did absolutely 
nothing wrong by being up there.

However, because I spoke to you, just the two of us 
on Thursday without the attorneys being present, I wanted to 
just ask you some followup questions that I didn't ask at tha 
time.

JUROR NUMBER 1: Okay.

THE COURT: The first thing I was interested in
knowing is how you were aware there was even a homicide trial 
going on in another courtroom.

How did that come to your attention, i ( you remembe
JUROR NUMBER 1: Well, I wasn't really aware of the

particulars of that trial, but my wife is a jurcr up there.
THE COURT: Your wife is a juror v.p there? That is

an lunazing coincidence, both of you are serving on juries at 
the same time.

Can you tell me what you actually saw, when you wer 
in that coi;rtroom, if you can describe it in a general way?

JUROR NUMBER 1: To tell you the truth, I'm not —
I don't really even remember anything. I know it was the 
testimony of the prosecution witnesses.

THE COURT: Was there anything about what you saw
that would have any impact on your ability to bs fair and

mB-'
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JUROR NUMBER 1: Yes, I'm pretty certain about that
THE COURT: I detected a slight note of hesitation

in your voice. What we are concerned about here is that ther< 
is an absolutely one hundred percent fair and impartial trial 
to both the State and to the defendant.

If there is any concern about something that you 

saw, now would be the time to tell me.
Again, you did nothii;g wrong. If there is any 

problem that results from your being up mere, s:ayba you can 
be a little more specific.

JUROR NUMBER 1: No, there wasn't anything that I
saw or heard up there that would influence me i.i this case.

THE COURT: Did you talk to any of the other three
jurors that were with you upstairs, any of the other three 
from this trial?

JUROR NUMBER 1: Since then? What do you mean?
THE COURT: Since then did you talk to them about

what you saw up there?
JUROR N'JMBER 1: No.

THE tC'JK'f: Counsel, anything further:
MR. ARONOW: Nothing further.

• '.S;.,
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MR. LEINER: Yes. Just one question, your Honor.
Sir, did you ever talk to your wife about the trial 

going on, your trial and her trial? Did you ever compare 
notes, anything like that?

JUROR NUMBER 1: Maybe some general questions like,
you know, she mentioned it was e murder trial.

THE COURT: Beyond that, though, did you have any
discussion about the types of testimony in that trial versus 
the types of testimony here?

JUROR NUMBER 1: No.

THE COURT: Anything further?
MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: Sir, I am going to be speaking with the 

other three. Then we will be resumi.ng this trial in full. 
Thank you very much for speaking with us.

JUROR NUMBER 1: Okay.

(Juror Number 1 excused from courtroom.)
THE COURT: I suggest we make a determination on a

one-by-one basis, rather than afterwards, so our memories are 
clear as to what the pers:.-' said.

Is there any objection, Mr. Aronow, on the part of 
the State to Juror Number 1 continuing?

MR. ARONOW: None at ell.
THE COUKi; Mr. Leiner?

MR. LEINER: Yes, there is, your Honor.

H: ‘ . n' ^
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THE COURT: I will hear you.
MR. LEINER: Your Honor, it is clear that this

gentleman's wife, and it is an amazing coincidence, I am not 
implying anything unfair is going on there, given his answers 
he was pretty sure that it wouldn't affect him concerns me.

He also concerns me in regard to his lack of respon 
to what he saw, and also the fact that it appears as though 
there was some discussing between him and his wife about the 
trials. He characterized those as being general, but I am 
concerned in this case we have to err on the side of caution 
and precaution, that these conversations, we don't just have 
him going upstairs, but we have his wife sitting on the other 
jury and they have a conversation m a general way.

With regard to what he saw and hic responses to youi 
Honor's questions, would it affect his ability to be fair and 
impartial, his response was not as strong as 1 would have 
hoped it would have been.

Therefore, I am concerned about this juror's ability 
to maintain hxs fairnest 5iid impartiality during the deliber­

ation.

THE COURT: Your objection is certainly noted and
your request is noted. I am going to hear from the other 
three and then I can rule on any objections and request for 
disqualification for cause. I will handle thoie in the 
aggregate. You have made your objection clear.

1



We will bring in the next juror, the seat number at 
this point is Number 10.

In the meantime, Mr. Leiner, I wi'.l give you a copy 
of the proposed verdict sheet.

MR. LEINER: Thank you, your Honor.
(Juror enters courtroom.)

THE COURT: Good morniig.
JUROR NUMBER 10: Good morning.
THE COURT: I wanted to speak to you individually

about something from last Friday. Before I do that, I want t< 
emphasize to you strongly as I can you have done absolutely 
nothing wrong. I don't want you to feel because you are com­

ing in individually we think you did anything wrong. Clearly 
you did not.

What I am referring to is that one of the sheriff’s 
officers who is in this courtroom happened to jiso be assigne: 
to Judge Natal's courtroom on Thursday, because after we endec 
about 10:00 o'clock the sheriff's officers are very efficient, 
and when one courtroom is not in session they go up to anothej 
courtroom.

In that process he became aware some of the jurors 
from this trial were watching some portion of the trial that 
was being conducted up in Judge Natal's courtroom, which is a 
homicide trial.

He brought to my attention that you and I think thrde
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others were seated upstairs for 'sone portion of that. I want< d 
to speak to you individually, just to see whether there is an; 
impact in having watched that trial on this trial.

JUROR NUMBER 10: Oh, no, no.
THE COURT; Can you tell me how it was you learned 

there was a trial up there?
JUROR NUMBER 10: One of the other jurors that's

sicting here, Michael, Number 1 —
THE COURT: The one in Seat 1?
JUROR NUMBER 10: Yeah. His wife is a juror in

that trial.
THE COURT: So he irentloned this to some of you?
JUROR NUMBER 10: That he wa» going down).
THE COURT: That he was goi.->g up?

JUROR NUMBER 10: Up, yeah, and we decided that
would be nice, to watch something when you ara not a juror.
We weren't a juror on that.

THE COURT: What did you actually see, if you can
tell us? What was going on when you were up there?

JUROR NUMBER 10: I don't know who was talking.
There was a gentleman talking.

THE COURT: He was a State w-tnass?
JUROR NUMBER 10: Yes. We saw two defendants there.
THt COURT: Two defendants?
JUROR NUMBER 10: Yeah, and it was a eurder trial.

A'
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Trial 18

There was a lot of names going o'l, and I don't understand the 
names, who was who, so it was hard to follow.

THE COURT: You couldn't tell because you saw such
a brief portion of it?

JUROR N'JMBER 1C: Right.

THE COURT: Were you present during the Judge's con
versations with the attorneys and the defendant, that might 
have occurred outside the presence of the jury?

I don't know if there was any such conversation.
JUROR NUMBER 10: No. We had to leave.

THE COURT; Because they were aware you were from 
another trial at that point?

JUROR NUMBER 10: I do.n't know Ma»bv.

THE COURT: Did you talk to any of the other three?
Am I right, there were four of you from the tri4;l?

JUROR NUMBER 10. Right.

THE COURT: Did the four of you talk either then or
afterwards about what you had seen up there?

JUROR NUMBER )'; We just said it was hard to follo« 
because we didn't know the names.

THE COURT: Would anything that you saw in that
trial have any impact on your al-ili';y to be fair and impartia 
in this case?

JUROR number 10; No.

THE COURT" Is that something you are a hundred per'
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cent confident of?

JUROR NUMBER 10: Yes.

THE COURT: Counsel, any additional questions that
either of you would like to ask?

This is the juror in feat Number 10, Juror Number 
3<3. Any additional questions either of you would like to 
ask her?

MR. ARONOW: No, your Honor.
MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: If I could ask you not to discuss this
issue with the other jurors, when you get back there.

JUROR NUMBER 10: Okay.

THE COURT: Very good. Wo will be alble to resume
the trial in a little while. Thank yoi> for coming in.

JUROR NUMBER 10: Thank you.

(Juror Number 10 excused from courtrooi.i.)

THE COURT: Bring in the juror in Seat Number 4,
which is Juror Number 412.

While waiting for her to come in, Mr. Aronow, are 
there any objections the state has to Juror Number 343 in 
Seat 10 continuing?

4R. ARONOW: Absolutely not.
the court. Mr. I.einer?
MR. lElNEfi: No, your Honor.

(Juror enters courtroom.)
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THE COURT; Have a ae^t in whichever chair you woi 
like. Good morning.

JUROR NUMBER 4: Hi.

THE COURT: I want to speak to you individually, t

I am speaking to a few other jurors individually as well, 
about something that happened on Thursday.

Before 1 go any further, let me emphasize that you 
did absolutely nothing wrong and nobody in this courtroom is 
even suggesting or thinking you did anything wrong.

We learned from one of the sheriffs officers that 
one of the jurors seated in this trial after we ended early 
on Thursday, I should say some of the jurors went upstairs to 
another courtroom to watch a homicide trial 9cing on there.

I had not given you any instruct.on about that. Yo 
were absolutely free to do that. It is an open public judici; 
system and you are free to do that.

The only reason I am speaking to you individually 
is because 1 want to be sure that you can still be fair and 
impartial in this case. In other words, we want to be sure 
that nothing you saw there would interfere with your ability 
tr decide this case, based only on the evidence.

JUROR NUMBER 4; No.

THE COURT: If I could Start by asking you, how did
you know that there was a homicide trial going on upstairs?
How did that come to your attention?

a!
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Trial 21

JUROR NUMBER 4: By one of the jurors, because his

wife is serving.
THE COURT: The juror that sits rn Seat Number 1?

JUROR NUMBER 4: Yeah, Number 1.

THE COURT: Can you tell me what you saw, when you

went up in that courtroom?
JUROR NUMBER 4: I just saw at the time it was, I

bel:eve, a detective or something on the stand, and the pro­

secutor was asking him questions, and I was able to see there 
was a weapon there, and the jury, and there was a bunch of 
little kids in the back behind me. Looked like probably family 

that was there. That was it.
THE COURT: fid you dr»w any inferencefi isr any

assumptions abour that trial?
JUROR NUMBER 4: No. 1 didn't hear thct much of it

We were only there about fifteen minutes.
THE,COURT: You were only there fifteen minutes?

JUROR NUMBER 4: Yes.

THE COURT: Dio you have any discussion with the
other three people that you were with, the other three jurors 
from this trial about that?

JUROR NUMBER 4: No. I just walked out because thej
wanted to break, because they told us to please leave the 
courtroom. I just said, I went like that to some of the othei 
jurors, and that was it. Then we talked about shat we wore
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doing afterwards, as far as leaving and doing what next. Tha 
was it.

THE COURT: What impact, if any, would that trial
have on your ability to be fair and impartial in this trial?

JUROR NUMBER 4: What impact?
THE COURT: Yes.

JUROR NUMBER 4: None.

THE COURT: Counsel, any additional questions eithe:
of you would like the Court to ask?

MR. ARONOW: No.

MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: We will have you go back into the jury
room, and we will be resuming the trial.

Do you need water?

JUROR NUMBER 4: I am just getting over a cold. l 
lust had some water, thank you.

the COURT: If you need anything else, I will be
glad to give it to you.

I will be speaking with the other jurors in a mo.-Dent 
After that will be resuming the trial, if i can ask you 
not to discuss with any of the other three, and for that 
•r-attor vith anybody what we have been talking about here.

JUROR NUMBER 4: Sure.

the COURT: Thank you very much. We will be with
you in a little while.
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(Juror Number 4 excused from courtroom.)

THE COURT: Counsel, as to that juror. Juror Number
412 in Seat Number 4, Mr. Aronow, does t.he State have any 
objection to that juror continuing?

MR. ARONOW: Absolutely not.
THE COURT; Mr. Leiner?

MR. LEINER: Not at this time, your Honor.

THE COURT: Then we will bring in the fourth juror, 
who is seated in Seat Nuirher 15 and is Juror Number 281.

(Juror enters courtroom.!

THE COURT: Good morning. Have a seat right there.
Thank you for coming in.

I want to speak to you individually. I have spoken 
to three other people individually abo-^ Thursday. Before I 
go any further, let me emphasize to you yo.. have done nothing 
absolutely nothing wrong. Nobody thinks you did anything 
wrong.

We are aware that some of the jurors from this tria] 
watched a small portion of a trial upstairs. As I said a 
second ago, you have ev£., right to do that. When you are 
discharged from this courtroom, you have the right to go and 
w^tch any other trial. There is no problem with that.

The only reason we are speaking to you individually 
is just to make sure that nothing that you saw up there would 
have any impact or. this trial.

11 iii iiff^iii
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JUROR NUMBER 15. No.

THE COURT: If I can aah you, how did you become
aware there was another homicide trial going on?

JUROR NUMBER 15: One of the other jurors, his wife

was serving on that 3ury.
THE COURT: That is the juror seated in Seat 1?

JUROR NUMBER 15: Right.

THE COURT: What did you see, when you were up in
that courtroom?

JUROR NUMBER 15: There was somebody — We couldn't
tell -- We got in kind of in the middle. We weren't there 
very long. They broke about 11:00 and we left. I was look­

ing around to see if they were the same kind of people. They 
didn't have a Court Reporter. They had a TV and the prosecut: r 
was speaking. I assume it was someone from law enforcement.
I didn't notice when we came in who that we*; but they were 
presenting evidence and things like that.

THE COURT: Did you talk among the four of you.

t .'i '



pretty much it. It was kind of dull. We were there about 

twenty minutes.
THE COURT: Did you discuss anything about the sub­

stance of that trial at all?
JUROR NUMBER 15: No. We didn't know what was goin(

on. I know there were two defendants instead of one. Every­

one had their own attorney, b’lt that was it.
THE COURT: What impact, if any, would that trial

have on your ability to be fair and impartial in this trial?
JUROR NUMBER 15: Nothing. It was just to see what

was going on up there. It was nothing.
THE COURT: Counsel, are there any additional ques­

tions either of you would like the Court to ask pf this juror

MR. ARONOW: No, your Honor.
MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: We will be starting uo ^ith the trial

in a few moments. I want to talk to the attorneys. If you 
refrain from talking to anyone else about this conversation 

we just had, I would appreciate it.

JUROR NUMBER 15: Okay.

THE COURT: 1 want to emphasize you did nothing
wrong. Thank you for coming in and speaking with us.

(Juror Number 15 excused from courtroom.)
THl. COURT: Mr. Aronow, any objections on the part

of the State to Juror Number 281, Juror 15 continuing this

■
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trial?

MR. ARNOW: None whatsoever.
THE COURT: Mr. Leiner?
MR. LEINER; No specific objection. Judge.
THE COURT: At this time there has only been an

objection to one of the jurors continuing and that is the 
juror in Seat Number 1, Juror Number 138.

We do have three alternate jurors, and I would ex­

pect the trial will end either today or tomorrow.

I am inclined to agree this juror should be excused} 
largely for the reasons stated by the defendant. I agree 
there was equivocation in that juror's voice, when I asked 
him if he thought he could Le fair and impartial in this 
trial.

As a matter of fact, I noted It when I spoke to him] 
1 said: You seem to be hesitating a little bit.

The fact his wife is a juror in that other trial 
certainly leads to the possibility that tliere was some level 
of the discussion, in the very fact he knew she was serving o^ 
a homicide trial, which leads to the possibility there was 
further discussion.

1vocation 
>use. I am 

The only 
Id, perhaps,
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it was just his tone of voice and how he spoke, and that migh 

be very, very innocent, but I did notice a clear difference 
between the degree to which the other three assured us about 
their impartiality and the tone and the demeanor of that 
juror.

There was a marked difference, which is why I wante I 
to see all four.

MR. AROKOK: The only thing I would like to indicati
is he was the only juror that was twice called on the carpet 
by the Court, so we are dealing with the spontaneity of the 
other three jurors not knowing what is going to happen, until 
they were brought in here, whereas he was contemplating this 
whole thing over the weekend, because he is the only person 
called by your Honor on Thursday without anyone else being 
present.

1 don't think his tone of voice or anything indicates 
anything with respect to his ability to be fair and impartial, 
and 1 would like to indicate that for the record. I under­

stand your Honor will make a ruling based upon what your Honoi 
feels is appropriate, but : would like to place that on the 
record.

THE COURT: I didn't call him on the carpet today
or on Thursday. What I did on Thursday was simply tell him 

he has every right t.o watch another trial, and I asked him 
simply to not go back up there. I didn't talk tu him about
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what he was seeing, if it had any impact. 1 believed those 
questions were best reserved for today.

The only thing 1 talked to him about, it is on the 
record, I asked him not to go back there, and I made no 
attempt to extract a commitment from him. When he didn't 
answer me, I left it at that. I didn't say anything further.

MR. ARONOW: 1 a..i not referring to your Honor’s
intentions in any way. I am saying how someone may perceive 
it as a juror.

THE COURT: You may be right. Maybe that was his
tone here, because he was spoken to twice. There is no way 
to tell. All I can do is judge him by the way he appears her< , 
and I believe the more cautious and prudent approach would be 
to excuse him for cause.

MR. LEINER: In addition, your Honor, I would like
to indicate to the Court that my concern!, were first alerted 
when your Honor indicated he had a non-response to you on 
Thursday. That was the first indication I had that he was 
concerned about what had happened.

Maybe it was just that feeling people get of: What

did 1 do wrong? However, there was that non-response and then 
also the equivocation today.

THE COURT; Let me make things clear. I didn’t 
actually ask him a question. I stated my own preference. I 
said to him that I prefer that you not go back up there. i
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don't have the right to tell you pot to, but I prefer that yo’i 
not go there. Those were pretty much my words. I didn’t 
state it in a question form, which is why he didn't give me 
an answer, perhaps.

I am going to bring Juror Number 1 bach into the 
courtroom at this time, and he will be excused.

The husband of the juror in Seat Number 5, you have 
been present during these proceedings. I just want to ash yo' 
again, I know you have not discussed anything with your wife,
I just want to make sure that you will continue.

A VOICE: I am having a tough time hearing.
THE COURT: You told me you haven't discussed any­

thing with your wife. I want to be sure that yw will not 
discuss anything with her at any time during the trial and 
during the deliberations.

Can I have that commitment from you/
A VOICE: Certainly.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.
(Juror Number 1 enters courtroom.)

THE COURT: Juror Number 1, in considering your 
answers and speaking to the attorneys, I am goign to excuse 
you from the trial. Just because your wife is on another homi 
cide trial doesn't mean that you discussed it. 1 have no rea­

son to think you did.

Under the circumstances, I think the roost prudent

.^1
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course would be to excuse you at this time.
JUROR NUMBER 1: Ali tight.

THE COURT: You are excused, you had a one-in-five
chance anyway, yes, a one-in-five chance of being an alternat , 
anyway. I would expect this may come as a disappointment to 
you, and I am sorry for that. I do not want you to take this 
personally, you did nothing wrong, but to be on the safe 
side, given the unusual circumstance that exists, and J am 
going to be excusing you with our thanks for participating.

I Thank you very much.

MR. ARONOWi Judge, one thing, l, he going back to 
the Jury panel?

THE COURT! I am going to go out of the courtroom 
and tell the Court Officer not to let that juror talk to any­

body else.

MR. ARONOW: I don’t mean that. J

appearance.

THE COURT: Is there any further comment from eithe
side or further argument respecting the colloquy with the 
jurors that we just had:

MR. LEINER: Only to place on the record my general
concern about what has been taking place, your Honor, and I
think the three jurors remaining that were interviewed gave
unequivocal responses, and luckilw i*

ana luckily it appears as though they

erefore.
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it doesn't appear from their responses that there is that 
taint.

I do always have that concern, that something else 
subconsciously may be at work, but there has been no showing 
of that through the questioning.

the COURT: Thank you. The State has rested.
Are there going to be any defense witnesses, Mr.

Loiner?

MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: At this point, Mr. Copling, you have th<

right to testify, if you wish to. However, you have absolute: 
no obligation to testify. You have no obligation to offer 
any evidence whatsoever.

Because of that, therefore, you ha^e no obligation 
to take the stand. You have every right not to do so.

You have a choice at this point, and I believe Mr. 
Leiner has already discussed it with you. That is I can tell 
the jury that they are to draw no inference from the fact 
that you did not take the stand. In other words, I will be 
telling them, they may not hold that against you.

some defendants feel that draws more attention to 
the issue than they desire, and they ask the Court not to giv, 
that instruction. At this time I will read that instruction 
to you exactly a. it will be given to the jury, .,nd then l 

will be asking you whether you want that instruction given.

■ -
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The defendant ir. thie c^ase chose not to be a witnes, 
It is the constitutional right of a defendant to remain 

silent. I instruct you that you are not to consider for any 
purpose or in any manner in arriving at your verdict, the 

fact that the defendant did not testify, nor should that fact

enter into your deliberations or discussion, in any manner or 
at any time.

The defendant is entitled to have the jury consider 
all Of the evidence, and he is entitled to the presumption of 
innocence, even if he coes not testify as a witness.

DO you want that instruction to be given to the jurj
THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

the COURT: Mr. Leiner, anything further on that
subject?

MR. LEINER: No, yout Honor.

the COURT: That instruction will be given.
Before we bring in the jury, we are going to be go­

ing right into closing argument, obviously. I think what ve 
need to do is continue w^th the charge conference. We had 
provisional or tentative charge conference on Thursday. We 
need to continue that as well as address some additional 
issue, that we didn't discus, on Thursday.

For e:<a.„.ole, we need to review the transferred in­

tent charge. is substantially the same a, the version pro­

vided to me by Mr. Aronow. i m.d, change, in the language to
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make the language a little bit lesis cumbersome. They are 
minor.

I will give each of you a copy of that instruction 
at this time. At the same time let me also give you a second 
instruction, which I believe should be given, and we discusse< 
this briefly in Chambers.

Essentially the Court will be instructing the jury 
or accomplice liability on murder and on two lesser included 
offenses, aggravated and reckless manslaughter. The case law 
suggests, most particularly State vs. Conceoion. when there 
are a number of possible verdicts that the Court has an obli­

gation to explain what facts sre in the record or what find­

ings by the jury could support ont veraict as opposed to 
another.

Theretore, I have drafted a supplemental instructior 
which I would propose to give. Let me distribute it to you 
at this time and allow you to review it closely. It's three 
pages in length. I believe this certainly needs to be clari­

fied and discussed and approved before we proceed to closing 
argument. Let me give each of you a copy of this at this 
time.

We need to clarify the verdict sheet, of course.
Mr. Aronow, any objection on the part of the state 

to the verdict shaet I distributed?
MR. ARONOW; No.

[I
......iisf»
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THE COURT: Mr. Leiner?
MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Why don't we tf.ke a brief recess, becaui e
it will take some time to review, particularly the additional 
part that I drafted. As soon as you both had an opportunity 
to study it and read it, let me know and then we will resume.

MR. LEINER: Th.nk you, your Honor.
(Recess.)

THE COURT: Counsel, my Chambers just received a
phone call from the sister of Juror Number 108, seated in 
Seat 7, indicating that they have a sister in North Carolina 
who is dying, and that at noontime the sister that called and 
some other family members will be driving to North
Carolina to visit their sister.

Therefore, the one that just called wants to be put 
in touch with the sister, who her sister is being asked to 
come down to North Carolina. I know this was not mentioned 
during the jury selection process. I probably would have ex­

cused her. I would have excused her for cause because of the 
possibility that this could happen.

I wanted to let you know I was going to be allowing 
Juror Number 108 to speak to her sister.

Are there any objections or comments before we do
so?

MR. LEINER: No.

■ '1^: '
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THE COURT: After she gets off the phone, we will
speak with her. I will have her taken to a private area to 
call her sister back.

While doing that, have you both had an opportunity 
to review the transferred intent instruction?

MR. LEINER: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Are th._re any objections to it from
either of you?

MR. ARONOW: No.

THE COURT: Is there any comment or objection to th<
other instruction that I gave you, the one that set forth the 
possible verdicts?

MR. ARONOW: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Aronow, vhat is ’'Our objection?
MR. ARONOW: Judge, first of all, with regard to th«

Order that your Honor sets forth the information, I think it' 
important that when the jury hears the instructions from the 
Court, that it makes it sound like Fahim is the only one that 
did anything here, and .hen secondarily your Honor brings in 
the defeiidant on trial.

.More importantly, that just has to do with the Order
Paragraph 2 is almost a directed verdict for aggra­

vated manslaughter or reckless manslaughter, and just because 

a scuffle occurs doesn't negate necessarily someone's intent 
to kill someone. If you are the one that sets the wheels in

1.^
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motion, just because the person defendants himself doesn't 
mean because a scuffle occurred and aggravated manslaughter 
or reckless manslaughter as opposed to murder.

If it was someone’s intention to kill someone, 
whether a scuffle occurs or not, it's still murder.

This paragraph also deals with Fahim individually, 
and your Honor's proposed instruction constantly deals with 
just Fahim, as though there is only one shooter here, and tha 
is not the State's theory.

The State's theory is it was Dennis Copling who 
fired the shots in the house and Fahim who fired the shot out­

side the house. I think a reading of the instruction as a 
whole leads one to believe one or the f.her, i.ot the possi­

bility of both.

THE COURT: Mr. Leiner.

MR. LEINER: First, your Honor, I disagree with the
prosecutor’s i-nterpretation, in regard to Paragraph 2 in some 
way commands addressing further.

Your Honor is 'lear in your Honor's proposed charge 
that, "If you find that the shooting of Kirby Bunch by Fahim 
occurred as the result of a scuffle over a gun rather than as 
a knowing or purposeful act," I think that is a distinction 
right there. I think that is covered right there and already 
covered in Pgragriph 1 in regard to the purpos»ful or knowing 
act and, of course, your Honor will have define! those terms

m
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to the jury long before that.
In addition, your Honor paints several scenarios 

here, all of which are arguably consistent with the evidence.
It does indicate, starting with Paragraph 3, "If you find 
that the defendant Dennis Copling committed the murder of 
Kirby Bunch himself, in other words, he fired the gun, not 
Fahim," clearly all of those are contemplated and they are 
questions of fact for the jury.

They are questions of fact for the jury to determln^, 
and I think you have given them in that the overall proposed 
charge here, both scenerios, and, therefore, we have one 
scenerio that supports the State's theory and another that 
supports the defense's theory.

Therefore, I don't think it's improper.
In regard to the Order, why should the Order be any 

different? Why should the Order favor the State? It falls 
either way, and your Honor wrote it that way. I don't see hov 
that is prejudicial either way.

T!’<£ CO'JRT: Wnat I can do is also add one scenerio
under which if they find the defendant fired a gun, and if 
they find that he solicited Fahim to also fire a gun at Kirby 
Bunch, then the defendant would be found guilty of murder.

wmi' II -i-rff- ■■ mi
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Mr. Aronow is correct in that,

MR. LEINER: "If you find beyond a reasonable doubt
that the defendant, Dennis Copling, solicited Fahim to conmit 
the murder of Kirby Bunch, or that defendant aided or agreed 
to aid Fahim in committing that murder, then Dennis Copling 
is guilty of murder."

THE COURT: Correct, but it does not adadress a
scenario where the jury could find that the defendant did botlj, 
that he solicited Fahim to shoot Kirby Bunch and he himself 
fired a shot.

MR. LEINER: I understand what you are saying.
THE COURT: That port is missing.

MR. LEINER: 1 think it’c covered later on if they
find that he was actualaly the shooter. iJ.at is already 
covered.

THE COURT: Right. The way it is structured seems
to be, one, that the defendant was the shooter himself and 

secondly, that the defendant solicited Fahim to do the shootiijg 
There is a third alternative which is that the defendant may 
have done the shooting himself or also solicited Fahim.

I agree with Mr. Aronow that a third scenario is 
not expressly stated and should be. The purpose is to give 
the jury an indication what the possible verdicts could be, 
then I agree v.hct all possible results suggested by the evi­

dence should be outlined here.

R
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1 wm draft something that would encompass that
as well.

MR. ARONOK: Judge, with respect to the scuffle
argument, counsel is correct that your statement does say as 
a result of a scuffle over a oun rather than as a knowing or 
purposeful, but to suggest scuffle over a gun suggest., that 
somehow it's an accidental act.

Whether a scuffle occurred or not is not the issue,
because clearly the evidence presented demonstrates that one 
did.

The issue is whether or not someone went in there 
With a purpose to kill, and if a scuffle occurred that doesn't 
negate their intent.

the COURT: Why is aggravated c.ansia’.ghter being
charged at all?

MR. ARONOW: Because the defendant requested it as a
possible scenario the jury may find, but that is not tne posi­

tion of the State is what happened.

the COURT: I understand that, but if there is no
evidence from which this gury could find anything other than 
the scuffle occurring in the midst of a preplanned attack, 
then aggravated manslaughter shouldn't be charged.

AP.....OW. I ask your Honor to include something 
Which deals wrvi. :,:erely a scuffle over the gun, as opposed to 
.omething that is suggested in that way. on the end of the

-m
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last paragraph of Paragraph 2b„ on the second page —

THE COUPT: Hold on. Let me change what we already
discussed.

MR. ARONOW: Okay.

THE COURT: I will delete the language which says,
"rather than as a knowing or purposeful act". That is legal 
terminology, not fact, and I would instead substitute the 
following language: "not as part of a pre-planned attack on
Kirby Bunch". I think that addresses the State's concern.

Any other comment? We can discuss this, the actual 
fine tuning after you both closely look at it. I would take 
a break and not go directly into the closing anyway, but I 
think this way I can be working on it the rr.santime.

Is there anything else eitner of you would like to 
bring to my attention respecting the supplemental instruction 
I drafted?

MR. ARONOW: If you know is going to have it re­

drafted with respect to some of the comments, I ask your Mono:
to consider when redrafting two more points I would like to 
bring up.

the COURT: Hold on. please. I am going to include
the scenerio you mentioned where both are shooters.

What are the other things you have?

MR. ARONOW: On the second paragraph. Page 2, under
the heading 2b, "Again, defendant Copling can o:'ly be found

mm'
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guilty or murder, aggravated manslaughter or reckless man­

slaughter as an accomplice if he solicited Fahim to commit 
the homicide, or if Copling aided or agreed to aid Fahim in 

planning it.*
Your Honor, it's corrjnitting it, planning or commit- 

ing under the statute, or if he was involved in a conspiracy 
to commit it.

THE COURT: Mr. Leiner.
MR. LEINER: Just read that sentence one more time.
NR. ARONOW: 'Again, defendant Copling can only be

found guilty of murder, aggravated manslaughter or reckless 
manslaughter as an accomplice if he solicited Fahim to commit 
the homicide or if Copling aided ot agreed to aid Fahim in 
planning it.”

MR. LEINER: I think the language of conspiracy,
it's already contained in there. Planned it, that is a con­

spiracy. That, is what conspiracy is. It is an agreement 
between people. I think that is already in there.

MR. ARONOW: udge, if you look at 2C:2-6, liability
for conduct of another, complicity, is what we are talking 
about, a person is legally accountable foi the conduct of 
another person if he is an accomplice or he is involved in a 
conspiracy with that person.

THE COURT: 1 agree. They are sapaiate concepts.
I will include that additional language.
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What else, Mr. Aronow?

MR. ARONOW: I don't know if your Honor meant to
say homicide under Paragraph 4 on the third line closest to 
the margin, as opposed to murder of Mark Winston. You talk 
later on about not escaping responsibility for the murder.

THE COURT: I did intend to use the homicide. I in­

tended to use a neutral word, because I then go on to explain 
in the succeeding line, the lines that follow what would turn 
it into a murder as opposed to an aggravated or reckless man­

slaughter.

Yes, I did do it on purpose.

MR. ARONOW: Further along where iast sentence
begins with the word, "however," where you read along further 
you get to the point where it says solicited, I wanted to add 
the same thing 1 was talking about, aided or agreed to aid in 
the planning or commission of the murder of Kirby Bunch.

THE COURT: Mr. Leiner.

MR. LEINER: The problen I have with that is relat­

ing it to the charge on causation. I understand the charge or 
causation or the prosecutor terms it transferred intent, if 
the jury finds that scenerio that the prosecutor puts forth, 
then there could be liability under causation for murder for 
Dennis Copling.

However, the problem I have with thi.t is the con­

spiracy itself transferring through that causation I don’*-.
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think applies.

In other words, if people make an agreement to 
commit a crime and to do that crime, if something else 
happens he could be criminally liable for the murder, but I 
am not sure that he could be criminally liable for a conspiracy 
to kill Mark Winston, unless there is evidence that was part 
of the conspiracy itself, that was part of the agreement. I 
think they are different concepts.

MR. ARONOW: They would havu to find that he is
guilty of the murder in order to even look at it from my 
scenario. That takes into account it was a knowing and pur­

poseful conspiracy to commit murder, as opposed to something 
lesser.

THE COURT: I agree with the State to a limited ex­

tent. I believe that the portion of the so.-tance which talks 
abotu accomplice liability should be if founded to include ai: 
of the statutory language on accomplice liability. I think 
that to add the conspiracy as a possible basis for criminal 
repsonsib:lity for the Killing of Mark Winston makes no logi­

cal sense.

There never was a conspiracy to murder Mark Winston.
If there was a conspiracy, it was with regard to Kirby Bunch.
I agree I should expand the accomplice liability as you have 
suggested, and I will do that.

MR. ARONOW: The last question I have deals with the

, -• • 'r
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l*8t two words, and 1 didn't know if you meant purposeful —
the COURT: Excuse me one second. I can read it

back to you also. I will be giving you a redraft when I in­

corporate these. I want to do it while it's fresh in my mind
MR. ARONOW: Okay.

THE COURT: The next one?

MR. ARONOW: The last two words, "at Fahim". I

don't think it is at Fahim. I think it's at Mark Kinston, or 
just leave that off altogether, it's fired purposefully at 
another. It should be if Mark Winston died as a result of a 
bullet meant for Kirby Bunch and fired purposefully, not at 
Fahim.

THE COURT: That is a definite mis>j.ake. Thank you.
MR. LEINER: I think you rocmt to say by Fahim, youi

Honor. Maybe I am reading that wrong.

THE COURT: I did this very late. I wrote it as
Fahim. Let me change it. 1 will change the word Fahim to 
Kirby Bunch. 1 will give you a revised draft and I will add 
that third scenerio.

Any other comments before we bring the Jury in for
closing?

MR. LEINER: Only, your Honor, at the conclusion of
this portion of your Honor's charge, if you could indicate to 
the jury that these are — i don't want tc say hypothetical 
scenarios, but they could find other scenarios themselves.

V , ■ ■■



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 
9

10

11

12

13

M

15

16

17

18

19

20 
21

22

23

24

25

S >i

Trifll

THE COURT! This is not meant to be an exhaustive 
list or an exhaustive discussion.

MR. LEINER: It's only for instructional purposes
they are offered.

THE COURT: It is not meant to be an exhaustive
discussion, you said one other thing after that?

MR. LEINER: Yes. That they are offered for in­

structional purposes only.

THE COURT: As opposed to what?

MR. LEINER: As opposed to indicating that this is
the only way the evidence could allow them to find it.

THE COURT: That is not really a difference from
what you first said.

MR. LEINER: I understand.

THE COURT: I thought they were two separate con­

ceptions. It is really an elaboration of the first.
MR. LEINER: Exactly.

THE COURT: Mr. Aronow, any objection to my includ­

ing that?

MR. ARONOW: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Why don't we bring in that juror. From

what I gather, she is going to request to be excused for 
cause.

Any objection?
MR. ARONOW: No.

f
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MR. LEINER: Under 'the' circumstances, no, your Hono:
THE COURT; That will leave us with just one alter­

nate.

MR. LEINER: Yes, your Honor.

(Juror enters courtroom.)

THE COURT: I am sorry your sister is ill in North
Carolina. I wasn’t aware of it, you )iept it to yourself, 
which you are entitled to do.

Do you want to oo down to North Carolina?

JUROR NUMBER 7: At this point I went to North 
Carolina about a wee)c ago and I did tell Don my sister was 
ill, if something happens vhat do I do, and he said no problei 
because of one of the numbers he gave us.

I got a report that she was doing fine, and then 
lilce during the veek her condition deteriorated rapidly. At 
this point my brother-in-law called, I got t call from my 
sister that sl,v is at the point where I don’t think may make 
it through the day, we don’t know.

So he said t; at if i wanted to see her, you should 
get out here right away. That is what I am torn between.

I felt like obligated. I did not want to leave, but 
I am kind of, you know, but I wanted to see her. That is the 
only thing.

T;.E COURT: I don’t want to put mys7lf in your shoei
I know what I would do under the circumstances. It’s your

M
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decision.We would respect your feeling, and there would be no 
problem. If you are asking to be excused on that basis, I 
will excuse you.

JUROR NUMBER 7: I need to be excused. Unfortunate

I need to be.

THE COURT: Counsel, anything further?
MR. LEINER: No, Judge.
MR. ARONOK: Nothing.

THE COURT: I hope she is well and recovers.
JUROR NUMBER 7. Thank you.
THE COURT; Thank you.

(Juror Number 7 excused from, courtroom.)
THE COURT: That was Utc iurcr .seateid in Seat 7,

Juror Number 108.

Are we ready to bring the jury back in for closing?
MR. LEINER; Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: As I mentioned a moment ago, we will
under any circumstances take some sort of a break between you: 
closing argument and the :ourt's charge. That will give us 
an opportunity to make any further fine tuning or adjustment 
to what we have been talking about. You will have an oppor- 
tuity to comment on it, before i actually give that instructic 
to the jury.

We will bring the jury in.

(Jury returned to courtroom.)
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THE COURT: I am sorry we were delayed. There were
things I didn't anticipate, when I spoke to you on Thursday 
and asked you to come in at 9:00 o'clock. We certainly 
apologize for that delay.

At this point in the trial the State has rested. 
There are no defense witnesses. We are therefore, ready for 
the closing arguments, and we will start with Mr. Leiner and 
his closing argument on behalf of the defendant, Dennis 
Coplinq.

Mr, Leiner,

MR. LEINER: If it please the Court, Mr. Aronow,
Mr. Copling, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, good morning.

Well, you heard the testimony presented and the 
evidence presented in this case, and very ..nortly you will 
all be going back into the jury deliberation room, and then 
twelve of you will go back and take this case, and twelve of 
you from different backgrounds and different upbringings and 
living in different areas, different jobs, will come together 
to decide this case about >»t another individual, Mr. Copling 
who is probably from another background, another upbringing 
and another occupation, and you all have to come together and 
decide basically his fate in regard to this particular case.

I would like to take the opportunity to thank you 
all this morning l am going to talk to you about the evi- 

dence and about some concepts. 1 will not talk abc.t legal
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concepts too much, because at
, , conclusion of these remarks
Judge Rosenszweig will be talking »

alking to you and will instruct yo
on how to apply the law to the f«ct= 

o.„,

-»'• » .^.rd to U,.

""" "• «o.., .M„„

zrr
you had during the course of your life end t .

your life, and take that into
y deliberations and apply u as you see fit, because it is

•—»d.ddd,...

y you, things.

-bout this case, and hopefully you win hav
y you Will have your own decisior

that I may have done durin. this trial t <

K„ either Offend you
, ...d, '

‘ if I do soemthing to offend you r Vn,.

againtthim. ' ^ ■'"°w you won't hold it

1 know you are goinn to #oi,
g O follow your oath and you win
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have and will continue to give my client the presumption of 
innocence, and you will only find him guilty if the state has 
proven its case beyond a reasonable doubt.

Therefore, I would like to start this morning and 
talk to you about the prosecutor who in the beginning of this 
case indicated to you this rase is about murder. Actually 
that's for you to decide, what this case is about, wh-ther 
it's murder or whether it's something different, or whether 
or not a crime was committed at all by Dennis Copling, and yo, 
also have to decide if you find there was a murder or homicid. 
who committed that crime.

I would like to start with some of the testimony in 
regard to what happened in the house on Westminster Avenue on 
January 18th of 1995. This was the house Nate Simmons indi­

cated was his house, and he was there that day with Kirby 
Bunch and Bejamin Young.

The police are called to the scene, they find a body 
inside, and that is the body of Kirby Bunch. Inside they find 
the body of Mark Winston, it is indicated through the evideneje 
that Kirby Bunch was she- at least once outside, and that was
most likely the wound that struck him through the back of the 
beck.

Therefore, we are left with the inference that the 
other two wounds n.ippened inside.

You heard the testimony of Dr. Cather.Tian in regard
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to that, and how close those wounds took place, where they 
were on the body.

I suggest to you, ladies and gentlemen, that what, 
happened in the house is not inconsistent with some of the 
other evidence you heard. In other words, if people are 
struggling over a gun, isn't it logical that gun will go off 
in clsoe proximity to one of the persons' bodies and leave 
powder residue and things like that, that Dr. Catherman found 
on the ground?

We had the testimony of Mike Aaron to draw this 
sketch for us to present to the jury, who indicated that cer­

tain other things were found in the house, and also certain 
things were recovered, including jorne shell casiT>g»- They 
found two shell casings in the inside of the *-ouse, and anoth< 
on the outside of the house.

The sergeant who came in testified in regard to 
ballistics in this matter, indicated that all those shell cas­

ings came from the same weapon. There is something that 
bothers me about this. It s not quite right about everything 
they said. I am not disputing the shell casings were in the 
house, and also the spent projectiles taken from the body of 
Kirby Bunch matched with the shell casings that were outside, 
and were probably fired from the S2une gun.

I don't think that is in dispute. We have something 
else, we don't have that wespon, but we do have --his weapon

r 'iW'"'' •' • I
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found inside the house. According to Pierre Robinson this 
weapon was found three feet from the body of Mark Winston.

There are no discernible or useable fingerprints 
were able to be taken from the weapon or from what is referred 
to as a clip. No one could testify as to whether or not this 
particular weapon was ever fired.

We do have something else. Who had this weapon, 
who possessed it, was it Mark Winston? Was it the man inside 
the house? Was it Kirby Bunch? They are things we don't knov 
and questions that we all have to have in our mind, and thingfl 
you have to think about when you are in the jury room.

There are so many scanerios possible under that 
circumstance.

If Kirby Bunch had the weapon, the individual who 
may have pulled the other weapon in the house ir,ay have had 
some provocation for pulling that weapon. Then you have to 
determine whether or not whoever was in that house committed 
a purposeful or knowing murder, or committed something else.

The judge wil' instruct you on all that law as to 
how to apply it.

Now, what does the State say about what took place 
here? Well, they say through the prosecutor that on January 
18th, some time after dark, Dennis Copling ran into Leervin 
Hill. You reiiember Leervin Hill. He was e six foot two drug 
dealer who possessed a ski mask, who supposedly Dennis
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Copling ran into on the street.

He described what Dennis Copling was wearing. He 
described a black leather jacket, some black pants. Also, he 
indicated that Dennis Copling's hands were free. He didn't 
see his hand in his pocket. He didn't see any evidence of a 
gun. He was with a friend called Naughty (phonetic). He 
didn't know his last name. H'' didn't know where he lives.
He has known him for a while.

We can't call Naughty (phonetic) to see if Leervln 
Hill got it quite right.

When Dennis Copling left the area, according to 
Leervin Hill, he walked off. He didn't see him get in a car.
He didn’t see him with anybody. This was after dark on 
January 18th, 1995.

Then we have Dennis Copling, according to the testi 
mony, appearing over at the house of Marie Ca.in (phonetic). 
This is some time later. Dennis Copling supposedly comes theie 
by himself.

Latisha Fair describes what he is wearing, black 
leather jachcc. I think she said a blue and white striped 
jacket. 1 think she said a blue and white striped shirt.

Then after some discussion, he supposedly leaves 
again by himself and goes somewhere else.

Approximately twenty minutes later or so Latisha 
Fair and Barbara Buckhannon and Lakesha Buckhan.ion go to find

-II
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Lakesha's brother, and yet everything is done already.

Under that scenerio you have Dennis Copling suppose, ly 
on the street with Lecrvin Kill, nobody else, no visible sign 
of a gun, running over and talking to Lakesha Buckhannon and 
Latisha Fair and Barbara Buckhannon with a blue and white
shirt on, no one sees a gun of course, Latisha Fair says she 
thinks was a gun.

Then going over to Maguire Garden Apartments shortl 
thereafter, and according to the state commiting this crime.

If s someone without a gun with slightly different 
Clothing on, because if you remember the testimony of Nate 
Simmons, he indicated that the person who came in the house 
had a black and white jacket on.

He also indicated he had a blaex hood over his face 
and a mask over his face.

In this time period Dennis Copling has to run get a 
gun, go over to see Latisha Fair and Lakesha Buckhannon, run 
.Ome distance away to Maguire Garden Apartments, put on a hood 
put on a jacket, have the gun, go in and commit these crimes, 
run out Of the house, and then hand the gun like a baton in a
relay to someone else who comes over and shoots Kirby Bunch 
outside.

I thir.A .t S clear the State never disputed that the 
.hooter outside wa. not Dennis Copling. x think that is clear 
from both the opening statement and clear from the evidence.

1
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The shooter outside was not Dennis Copling.

Now let's talk about the individuals in the house 
nd what they saw. Benjamin Young, ho sees an individual he 

I^nows as Malik come into the house. He doesn't see anybody 
else come in the house, because he is seated on the couch in 
the living room area in the apartment back in here. So he 
doesn't know who that other individual was.

Nate Simmons, on the other hand, is seated on the 
couch next to Benjamin Young, supposedly right next to the
door, but Nate says there was no hal.way, yet Mike Aaron drew 
• I....,., .. ......

living room and kitchen.

But then again, Nate couldn't find hi* own front

“ «... .. o, t.. .. .... ... .... ..
add there.

1 asked Nate whether or not there was any drug use
.0-9 on in the house that particular day. Nate said no, and
I think you all know why i asked him that guestion. That wou.

to vheth.r or no, hi, ptrcption could hove buen cloud, 
or .n„hin, . . . . . . .  .. .....

1 llnd 1. ln,.r...i„, .... . .........

«t«.t. ..... di^o.., CO,.vied dru, d..l.r, ...j..,.

------------ --- con,l.„„.. ...h cerollud ..„,„ou. duh...„„

»t. d.u„ 1, ch. tltchun, cor, o„. „ „ „ ... ,o„.h,.,
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out of it, and no drug use was going on.

The prosecutor xs goxng to stand up here and pxobab

house that particular occasion. Those bags could have been'
there fro„ anywhere in ti„e, and ,ust because there are two
convicted drug dealers in the house, that doe.n-t „ean any­

thing.

vou know something? „e would be right. But, ladie 
and gentlemen, isn-t that the .an. conclusion you are going t„ 
he asked to n.ake in the circumstantial evidence in this case^ 
vou wxll he asked to put pieces of the pu„le together, but 
these pxeces aren't quite right.

Nate didn't get xt quite right. talked about 
Six ioot two to Six foot three indxvxdual, black and white 
:achet, green pants. „e didn't know who that individual was 
He said he knew Oennis Copling. „e never saxo that he recog­

nised oennis Copling'. voice in that room, yet he clearly 
stated he heard the conversation. never said that. „e 
never said that, y.t he heard it.

Then we have Tx„, Oueen.bury, who arrived at the 
scene from across the street or from around the back.  . . .

Kirb> Bunch laying there and he says in a dying breath, Kirby
says: Dennis. That's «ii k

That s all he says, ladies and gentlemen.

was all he said. He doesn't say anything else. Unfortunately

i ■
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we can't question Kirby about what he meant or anything else.
Another thing that bothers me that is quite not 

right about that scenerio. Dennis Copling is running around 
complaining about Kirby Bunch to everybody, and saying: I am
going to get him, I am going to do him.

Why disguise yourself and go into the house and the: 
confront Kirby Bunch, and then talk to him as if you know eacl 
other? Why do that? Something is just not right about that. 
Something is just not right about that.

What else isn't right about this case? Well, let's 
talk about the State's motive for a minute. This motive was 
all about the pitbull, the fiaht between Gary Copling and 
Kirby Bunch.

Where do we get that evidence ira.m? We get that 
evidence from Lakesha Buckhannoii and Latisha rnir.

Let's talk about Latisha for a moment. Another 
convicted drug dealer, by the way. Latisha comes into court 
and she tells us a story. Several days before that, several 
days before January 18, 85, she sees Dennis Copling with a
gun at a party, she says that Lakesha Buckhannon and Dennis 
Copling had a conversation about it.

She says to Dennis: What do you need that for?
Dennis says: I need it for protection.

Of vcarse, Latisha Fair, also says t lere was no con­

versation with regard to the gun other than the fact she said
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Dennis Copling said: Don’t sit tliere.

Who do we believe? I find it interesting, ladies 
and gentlemen, that this story about the party comes out two 
years after the incident, two years. It’s one week before 
this trial Latisha Fair and Lakesha Buckhannon go to the 
Prosecutor’s Office and talk about this case, and they give 
this revelation about this party.

What did she say two years ago before that? When 
questioned: Did you see the gun? No, 1 didn’t see this one,
but I saw one last night.

It wasn't good enough, her story wasn’t right to 
just say Dennis Copling came to see what happened to hie 
brother, that wasn’t enough. There heU to be a guin. There 
had to be a gun.

Two years ago when she gave her statement, she had 
to say, since she didn't see one that night, ahe had to say 
she saw one last night. That statement, if you remember the 
testimony, was taken on January 19, 1995, in the very early 
morning hours. Let’s gi e her the benefit of the doubt and
say she didn’t see it on the 18th, because that is the night 
of the incident.

Let's say it was the night before, January 17th.
It still would have been last night in her mind. We know it 
couldn’t have been last night, because that is the night of 
the big fight. That’s the night of the big figlt between
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Gary Copling and Kirby Bunch. That's the one where Latisha 
was there, Lakesha Buckhannon, they went down to find Kirby 
Bunch, he beat up Gary Copling over th? pitbull.

We all know people like Latisha. She is the person 

in everybody's business. She is right there when the fight 
takes place. She is right there after the shooting offering 
evidence, and two years later when she realizes it oculdn't 
ha"e been quite right, now she has a story that makes it righ ; 
the story that there was a party before where she saw the gun 

with Dennis Copling.
We know Latisha. Two years ago she said Dennis 

Copling's hand was in the left pocket. One week before the 
trial all of a sudden it is in the right pockeA. She changed 
her story. She changed her story. She was going to be the 
star that came in here and told everybody what f.ook place in 
that house, what took place.

Do you remember I asked her when she came to the 
Prosecutor's Office, who she came over with? Lakesha 
Buckhannon. They didn't quite get it right. Her story didn' 
quite get it right even then, because she came in here and 
told us it was a party that took place two weeks before then 
or sevoral weeks, I think she said actually.

She also said that Latisha Fair was not there.
They didn't get it quite right when they come in here two 
years later.



V,,,

Trial 60

When was the last time Lakesha Buckhannon told you 

about that prior incident with the qun? The answer was January 
19, 1997, not two years ago. Not in January of 1995. Just 
a little over two weeks ago, three weeks ago. One week befor t 
the start of this trial.

Latisha said a lot of things that were inconsistent 
Latisha said in the house she is sitting next to her mother oi 
the couch when Dennis Copling comes in the house. Remember 
she said the couch was about from where this juror is seated 
up to the front door there? That is how far away from the 
couch it was from the door.

She said Dennis Copling threatened t© get them all.
I am going to come back and get everybody. Remember her 
mother said it never happened? She never heard iny threats.
She must have some other dynamic at work. Remember how upset 
she was when she came in this courtroom? She lost a sibling.

I can tell you from personal experience that is not 
an easy thing to deal wit'"'. She needs color. She needs some 
color.

Kirby went down and had the fight with Dennis — 
excuse me — with Gary.

Remember what she also said about that? The prose­

cutor asked h-r a question: Did Kirby Bunch choke Gary
Copling? She said; No. It was a fair fight.

Remember what Nate Simmons said? Kirby Bunch chol-.ef

m
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Gary Copllng to the point of an unconsciousness, to the point 
of unconsciousness. She wasn't going to do anything to mar 
the memory of her brother.

You see, ladies and gentlemen, you have those 
stories, you have to make it right, someone has to pay for 
this crime. Someone has to pay for the death of her brother. 
Someone had to pay for the loss of the pitbull. The story 
charges as time goes on and gets embellished.

Remember when I talked to Tim Queensbury, I asked 
him wasn't there a lot of things going on and a lot of rumors 
going on about this case, a lot of misinformation?

Well, ladies and gentlemen, I ask you to draw on 
your own experience when people know a lictle but atoout some­

thing, and they hear something from other screes, doesn't it 
all get added, people tend to adopt things as their own per­

sonal knowledge?

I as,: you to keep thaht in mind when you evaluate 
the credibility of these witnesses, when you evaluate the 
credibility of Lokesha Bu^shannon and Latisha Fair in their 
testimony, in regard to the motive, because it wasn't good 
enough that Dennis Copling talked to them about what happened 
with his brother.

There bid to be a gun. When they realized it wasn' 
good enough to havo the gun the night before, because it 

couldn't have happened the night before, two year.’ later it

o
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had to be a party that happened tiom time before that, but 
they didn't quite get it right.

Ladies and gentlemen, they didn't quite get the 
story right. It's what this case has been about, getting it 
right?

The police talked to Dennis Copling and couldn't 
get it right. Sergeant Forte couldn't get it right. Re 
didn't get Dennis Copling to tell him what he wanted to hear, 
so he had to take a break and talk to Detective Finneman, 
Detective Finneman is the person who knows nothing about the 
case, wouldn't know whether Dennis Copling is telling the 
truth or lying, adding things, subtracting things, yet he is 
left in the room alone with Dennis Copll".

He is going to talk to him mon-to-i_an, African 
American-to-African American. How patronizing. Haybe you 
don't find that offensive.

I want to ask you a question, though. Dennis Copli 
IS in their custody three hours, then why not tape the entire 
interview? What's wrong v th that? What is wrong with that 
procedure? ’.vhat is wrong with that?

Then we would know if they had it right. Then we 
would know if they got the story right. But that didn't 
happen.

I suc.jest there is nothing wrong with .'aping the 
entire interview, nothing.

iiP'
I
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Sergeant Forte sat on thfe stand and said he wasn't 
ready to take a taped statement from Dennis Copling, when the 
interview terminated. He wasn't ready then.

Why not? Why not tape the whole thing? why not 
let us hear the words spoken i„ that interview, instead of
some recitation given from the stand from the police officer? 
Why not?

These are all questions, ladies and gentlemen, that 
you are going to have to decide and resolve. They all have t, 
do with questions of human nature. They have to do with 
questions of what you find as fact. There are a lot of thing, 
at work here that I say just aren't right. The pieces just 
aren't right in the puzzle.

NO matter how they try to make them right by tell­

ing different stories two years later, adding the story 

two years later, not allowing us the opportunity to listen to
the interview, there are certain things in this case that are 
not right.

I am going to as,^ you to consider that when you go 
back in the jury deliberation room. i am going to asak you t, 
consider is the State's scenario in regard to what happened 
in the house right. Is it right, the way they portray it?

18 there seme evidence of a struggle with a gun?
I. that an act of purposeful and knowing murder? Did the 
people go there to talk? Did they go there to talk to Kirby

I
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Bunch, to find out what happened and things got out of hand?

These are all questions of fact for you to decide.
I am going to ask you to maintain my client's presumption of 
innocence until such time, if they do, you find the State has 
proven their case beyond a reasonable doubt.

Reasonable doubt, that is a concept that the Judge 
will discuss with you in an expanded version a little bit 
more than she has so far in this case, before you go into 
your deliberations.

I am going to ask you now to just imagine yourself 
in a car driving down the road, and I assume that most of you 
drive, but if you don’t, you have all been in the front seat 

of a car and you have been on a two ia.ne highway, and up aheac 
is a turn you want to make.

Imagine yourself in that car and you want to make a 
left-hand turn, yet there is traffic coming the other way. 
Before oyu make that turn, you are going to want to be sure 
that you can make that turn safely. You are going to want to 
be sure it's right to make hat turn.

Are you going to wait until you're ten percent sure 
Until you're thirty percent sure? Until you're seventy per­

cent sure? Until you're ninety percent sure? Or are you go­

ing to wait until you are sure beyond a reasonable doubt?

I ask you, ladies and gentlemen, don't rake that 
t'jrn in this cate. Don't make that turn, it's not safe.

I-’-"
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It’s not right. There is not enough here for you to make 
that turn.

I thank you for your time. I thank you for your 
patience, and I thank you for honoring the oath I know you 
have honored and will continue tc honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Aronow, your closing on behalf of
the State.

MR. ARONOW: Thank you, your Honor.

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, Mr. Leiner, it 
wasn't that long ago that I started in my opening statement 
advising you, the jury, of what the State anticipated it woul 1 
prove, with respect to the events that occurred on January 18 
and January 17th, 1995.

If you will recall, Mr. Leinei s»id forget about 
what was written on this and turn it over. Well, let's turn 
it back. Let's talk about what the State said in its opening 
statement, with respect to what witnesses were anticipated 
to be called in this case, and what the State anticipated 
they were going to say.

If you recall, I introduced them as the players, 
the people who had firsthand knowledge of information that 
occurred on various dates and various times during this case. 
These people didn't set the wheels in motion on January 18th, 
1995. Dennis Coplrng sent the wheels in motion on January 
18th, 1995.
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Was there a fight between Kirby Bunch, Jr. and his 
brother, Gary? You saw there was. Did the State try to hide 
anything? Didn't the witnesses Lakesha Buckhannon and Nate 
Simmons testify about the fact there was a fight that occurre I 
on January 17, 1995, and Gary Copling got his you know what 
kicked.

There is no dispute about that. A perfect motive 
for revenge. One of the oldest motives there is.

The defendant didn't hear the story straight. He 
only heard htat his brother got jumped and he was out to set 
the record straight, and he was going to take care of the 
people who jumped his brother, specifically Kirby Bunch, Jr.

There has been a lot of talk aooat witnessses and 
what they said and discrepancies, and we can talk about that 
until we're blue in the face.

Does the fact that a discrepancy exists mean that 
a person is lying? No. Does it mean they are not worthy of 
belief? No.

You have to look at what witnesses have said througl 
out this trial. Look at where they were in this trial, where 
they were on the various times when incidents occurred, what 
they specifically hid the opportunity to observe, whether 
other people whe- testified were there, and put i'. altogether. 
That's your job as jurors.

What do we know? We know for sure that Kirby Bunch
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beat up Gary Copling, Jr., and we know that occurred in the 
area of 28th and Mitchell.

If you look at S-22 in Evidence, you will tee 28th 
Street and Mitchell Street, but where exactly it happened 
isn’t relevant. The fact of the -.natter is that is where it 
happened, 28th and Mitchell.

What is the significance of that? The significance 
is that 28th and Mitchell, that is where Gary Copling was fou id 
the night before. At whose house? Michelle Butler's house ii 
the area of 28th and Mitchell. That is where Dennis Copling 
went the next day looking for Kirby Bunch and anybody else 
who had anything to do with his brother getting beat up.
He knew where they were because he knew the family.

He knew whehre the family used to hang out, and he 
went there in a conscious effort to bunt down Kirby Bunch and 
anyone else who is involved in beating up Gary.

You heard the mother, when she took the stand, 
Patricia Copling, that Dennis and Gary are brothers, Dennis 
is older, when I asked her on Direct isn't Dennis protective 
of his younger brother, Gary, she answered yes.

Then on Cross-examination Mr. Leiner tried to bring 
out he is not any more protective than anyone would be of 
their brother. ‘The fact of the matter is they were close.

What someone did to Gary meant that Deniis was goini 
to respond. Only Dennis didn't know what happened specificai;y

'1^
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so he went off hunting for Kirby and anyone else alone? The 
State suggests not.

Does he show up at various places alone? yes.

Does that mean no one else was around? Absolutely not.

You are entitled as jurors to take every reasonable 
inference from the evidence presented, both directly and cir­

cumstantially, and what do we know? We know by virtue of 

Na.e Simmons' testimony, and by virtue of Ben Young's testi­

mony, that Malik came into 2126 Westminster Avenue on the 
evening of January 18, 1995, and that he started an argument 
about who jumped Jun-Jun.

The only logical assumption is Jun-Jun is Gary
Copling.

If you remember the testimony ci Nate Simmons and 
Be Young, Mark Winston didn't want to hear anything else.
He told them to shut the F up, turn off the f-ing radio.
Kirby is trying to explain it was a fair fight.

What is a fair fight and not a fair fight is not th. 
issue here, ladies and gentlemen. The issue is whether or 
not Gary Copling was beat up by Kirby Bunch, and if that pro­

vides a motive for Dennis Copling to get Kirby Bunch. It cer. 
tainly does.

What el.c do Nate and Ben tell you? That someone 
else came in the house shortly thereafter. Khat else do they 
both tell you? They both tell you the person already in ther.



Kalik, said; You're going to have to talk to his brother.
Did they embellish their testimrny? No. What did 

they do afterward? They did the only thing anyone would ex­

pect someone to do, when they realized somebody pulled out a 
gun, they got the heck out or there.

Are they chicken? I would be a chicken too, if 
somebody pulled out a gun while I was in the house, in the 
agitated state Malik was already in.

What does Nate tell you? Nate tells you he could 
see the person, the size of the person is approximately six 
foot three, and what is not critical is how tall Demis Copli|g 
is, because nobody takes out a yardstick and measures people 
at a time things like this are happening. Nobody looks at a 
watch to know precisely when things are occurrinci. They gave 
you a general description.

When asked questions by the defense on Cross- 
examination, you remember that Nate Simmons said that he be­

lieved Dennis Copling was also six foot two, six foot three.
So the descr,.ptions of the individual are the same. It is 
not a question whetehr they are actually that height.

What else did he tell you? That he was wearing a 
mask over his face and he had a hoodie pulled down. Even if 
you knew who it was, if you are Nate Simmons, are you going 
to say, given what you know happened the night btfore? Nate 
Simmons was there when Gary Copling was kicked. He was there



when Kirby Bunch kicked at the body and head of Gary Copling, 
while he was on the ground.

You heard from Lakesha Buckhannon, and she didn't 
hold back with respect to that. The description that Nate 
Simmons gives, black and white — somebody wearing a blue and 
white striped shirt with a black leather jacket, under the 
circumstances that Nate Simmons had to observe them, is cer­

tainly accurate to the extent necessary to describe who he 
saw that night.

There has only been testimony and only been evi­

dence abotu three people, and we know it wasn't Malik, becaus 
Malik is dead. Malik was wearing a big parka, a down coat 
that you can see is in evidence. The only two people who 
weren't apprehended that night is a guy named Fahim and Denni 
Copling.

We have a description of a third person, Fahiin, by

Mr. Leiner is r*ght about one thing. The State 
doesn't dispute the person who fired the shot to the back of 
the neck of Kirby Bunch outside of 2126 Westminster Avenue

It doesn't mate'., at all with black leather jacket, dark green 
or black pants at nighttime. It matches only on» person, 
Dennis Copling.
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Who else saw Dennis Copling on January 18, 19957 
Who didn't have anything to do with what happened at 2808 
Mitchell, and the arguments between Barbara Buckhannon, 
Lakesha Buckhannon and Latisha Fair and Leervin Hill, or what 

happened at Westminster?
There wasn't any tettimony from Leervin Hill or 

suggested the defendant had a gun. Who cares? Does the fact 
someone is not in possession of a gun a half hour, twenty 
minutes, fifteen minutes, one minute before anything else 
happens, mean they couldn't have gotten their hand on it a 

later time? No.

What does Leervin Hill tell us? He tells you he's 
at 26th and High. We go back to the map, look at 2Cth and
High, and High is right about there, you have a scale on
this map. As the crow flies, it's about se’en hundred and
fifty feet, give or take.

We »-ave the defendant a couple of blocks away from 
28th and Mitchell. What does he do? What is he saying? Vou 
heard Leervin. He thought it was funny that Dennis Copling 
was all in a tiff, and how he was pacing back and forth, and 
how it was Leervin Hill who had a ski mask, and it was Dennis 
Copling, the man with the razor on his neck, and you had an 
opportunity to see the defendant clearly has a birthmark that 
looks like a raisin on his neck, grab his face mask and said: 
Let me see that, and he took it.

m3m
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Leervin Hill thought it was a joke. He didn’t do 
anything about it. He didn’t know anything abou’ what any­

body else heard or seen that night, it’s consistent, ladies 
and gentlemen, coimnon sense.

YOU don’t pick apart what witnesses say line-for- 
line, word-for-word to determine whether they are credible. 
You look at what they say and what they observed, and what 

they were going through at the time that they observed things 
to determine whether you believe they are credible or not.

If you remember, the state told you in the beginning 
Of this case we don’t pick who the witnesses are in a case.
t would be nice if a priest or nun or someone ei high statur* 

could come in here and tell you what they saw and have the 
aura of believability and credibility about them.

The fact someone has been convictej of a crime,

I... .... .......u....,.,,

Leiner bringing up questions about this.

YOU remember that there was testimony from Sergeant 
It may rot have appeared to make any sense when l gave 

n.Y opening statement in the beginning, .. certair. evidence 
wa. removed from the bodies of Kirby Sunch, .r. and Mark

iF |C:; 
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Winston, that being the projectiles, whether it had any signi 
cance in this case, and whether the shell casings recovered 
from the kitchen and the outside area had any significance to 
this case.

What Sergeant Toth told you is that shell casings 
leave certain evidence lines when they have been fired from 
a gun. There is no other gun that is going to be presented 
in evidence, because that gun was taken with Fahim and Dennis 
Copling, when they left after the shooting. But we know a gu: 
was there and we know the gun wasn't that gun, because Ser­

geant Toth told us that the projectiles, the lead part, the 
bullets, two bullets examined by him were determined to be of 
the same class characteristic, that is, .38 caliber class, 
of which a nine millimeter is part, and »ere both fired
from the same firearm.

He didn't say they were fired from the same firearm 
that fired the shell casings. He did say the bullets are con 
sistent with huger caliber, which are the shell casings in 
evidence, as opposed to the .380 ammunition found in this gun
Which is capable of being fired out of this gun, and which is 
*lio in evidence.

we can't give you the gun and ammunition at the sam, 
time, or obvious reasons.

The ,-ict Of the matter is the three shell casings 
were fired from the same gun, the two bullets were fired from

'i-
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the .an,e ,un, and they are bet. consistent with each other.

we tnow that Kirby Bunch was shot in the house 
first. How do we Know that? We know that from what Nate 

Simmons said and what Ben Voun, said. We know Malik is found 

he house. We know that from the fact Tim Queensbury said

been shot when he came up to him.

It wasn-t until Fahim came up moments later and

that the third and final shot was placed into and through 
Kirby Bunch’s body.

The evidence was recovered from both bodies. One 
bullet remained in Kirby Bunch, and t-..- only buUet remained 

tn Mark Winston. Both of them were killed by a nine millimet, r 
9un. The testimony was a semi-automatic handgun.

The testimony of Nate Simmons was that the person

the mask and the dark clothing pulled a black semi-automatic
handgun from inside of .is jacket, a semi-automatic handgun.
and sergeant Toth testified that the asusunition fired the pro
lectile recovered and the shell casings are automatic weapon 
ammunition.

.via..c. ...
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went and got help in order to commit this crime, and that he 
went a few short blocks away from 26th and High to the Maguir ■ 
Garden Apartments. It all fits within this one map here, 
ladies and gentlemen. It all fits within this one map.

If you recall the testimony of Sergeant Forte and 
the testimony of Detective Finneman, the defendant's own 
words were that he went with Malik and Fahim. He only admits 
to beating up Kirby Bunch.

Would you expect him to say anything more? Are you 
going to come out and say: Oh, yeah, I killed him, I shot
him, or 1 only shot him on hte inside, and it was Fahim who 
shot him on the outside.

Two people are dead, ladies and gentlemen, so you 
tell the police officers the truth. The truth is that you 
were there. The truth is that you are the one wearing the 
dark clothing with the mask. The truth is that Fahim was 
wearing a light colored clothing.

How did they get to where they were going? By car.
By Fahim's car. This s evidence which the police had no way 
of knowing, until they heard it right from the defendant's 
mouth himself.

Tim Queensbury didn't tell you he knew who Fahim 
was. He didn't. Tim Queensbury didn't volunteer any infor­

mation to the police. They went and found h;m. They didn't 
find him until six months later.

m-
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When answering questions in response to Cross- 
examination, Tim Queensbury didn't sit here and say it was 
Dennis Copling who shot the shots outside. He said it was 
someone else. He knew Dennis Copling. He was right there 
next to Kirby Bunch when tv;o shots were fired, one striking 
Kirby Bunch and one not striking Kirby Bunch.

Shell casings were found outside the house, shell 
casings were found inside the house. Identical. Whoever was 
in the house had the same gun. Dennis Copling was in the 
house. He had the reason to settle the score. He brought 
Fahim and Malik along with him with another gun that was 
found, according to the paramedic who knelt down to work on 
Malik, two feet away.

According to the police officer who was first on 
the scene and ran through and made observations, and then ran 
to check to see if anybody else was in the house, it was 
approximately three feet away, but it had been moved by the 
time he got back.

You heard Dr. Catherman testified that the shot that 
struck Mark Winston would have paralyzed him immediately from 
here down, from the midchest down. He could have dropped 
like that.

The st.ite would suggest he would have dropped his 
gun. Dr. Catherman testified about a bullet type injury to 
Mark Winston's right thumb. You will see photographs that have
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been admitted into evidence of the crime scene in the kitchen 
and the gun is there, and there are smatterings of red stuff 
on the gun.

The only testimony you heard about injury to anyone 
hand was to Mark Kinston. There is a photograph of his thumb 
nail and the area around the tip of his thumb that is consis­

tent with what Dr. Cathernan told you, that he was struck by 
a bullet.

If you remember, it was the State's argument to you 
in opening statement that if Dennis Copling we,-.t there for 
the purpose of killing Kirby Bunch, and it was his intention 
to do so, or to cause serious bodily injury that resulted in 
death, then he is guilty of murder, if that wa£ his conscious 
intent.

The fact that Mark Winstcn, who was clearly not in­

tended to be killed in this incident, but I think it's clear 
that Dennis didn't want his buddy to be killed, then it doesn 
matter. If that was still his intention, it's called the 
Doctrine of Transferred liitent. He is repsonsible for it.
It's a murder, it's just the same.

The fact that a struggle occurred inside 2126 West­

minster Avenue does not negate the criminal intention of 
Dennis Copling in leing there in the first place.

If someone pulled a gun out in front of you, you are 
not going to just stand there and say: shoot me. You are go-

■ - ^
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ing to try and protect yourself. There has been nothing in 
the evidence presented before you that is consistent with 
Kirby Bunch possessing or having a firearm. If anything, it 
was completely to the contrary.

Kirby Bunch didn't use a gun the night before. He 
was in a place where he was allowed to be. It was Dennis 
Copling and Mark Winston and Fahim who came to hi.t. Even if 
he had a gun, he would have been justified in using it to pro 
tect himself, once someone pulled out a gun on him.

This isn't self-defense. This is premeditated. 
Dennis Copling went there with that purpose. He was looking 
for Kirby Bunch because he was going to get Kirby Bunch.

You heard the testimony of takesha Buickhannon, 
Latisha Fair and Barbara Ruckhannon. You vill listen to theii 
testimony and you hear the defense's argument they are not to 
be believed, because there are inconsistencies in the testimor 
they are lying, they are embellishing.

Again, listen to what they say. 1 would agree with 
Mr. Leiner Lakesha Buckhan-icn is devastated by the death of 
her brother and the circumstances that led up to it. Think 
about that when de*-ermining whether what she said is an in­

tentional misrepresentation to you as jurors or are mistakes.
If som&u.re was asked two years later, we brought in 

for preparation piior to trial what happened with this prior 
gun incident, that's the first time you may hear .'bout it.

r ss
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But you recall that although on Cross-examination Mr. Leiner 
asked Sergeant Forte whether Lakesha Buckhannon said anything 
about it, he didn't reccll that, but he recalled Latisha Fair 
mentioning the previous occurrence, it happened, whether two 
weeks before or whether it was three days before, and they 
both said the same thing.

This was at a time when they were still friends 
witn Dennis Copling. They are together at a family function, 
a friend's house, cards are being played. Lakesha Buckhannon 
went down to sit on a pillow and there was a gun on it, and 
Dennis Coplign told her not to sit there.

He takes the gun, retrieves it and puts it somewher 
on his body. All that is entirely consistent with what both 
women were saying. It is not a lie. It happo.ned.

Does that necessarily mean Dennis Copling was in 
possession of a black handgun on January 18th? No. But it 
is certainly evidence from which you can determine that he 
did.

What did Lakesha Buckhannon, Latisha Fair and 
Barbara Buckhannon do as soon as the argument was over? They 
called the police before it was over. The police arrived.
When they realired the police weren't taking them seriously 
enough, they tried to warn Kirby Bunch on their own, but they 
were too late.

The defendant had already been there anO was gone.
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The only thing left behind were two bodies, Mark Winston's, 
Malik, and Kirby Bunch, Jr., K.C.

A piece of evidence that you very rarely have in a 
case, ladies and gentlemen, especially a homicide, are words 
spoken directly from the victim's mouth. In this case just 
before a third and final shot, you heard Tim Queensbury who, 
if anything, should be hte most credible witness of all, be­

cause Mr. Leiner brought out through him that other people 
had been saying other things that were inconsistent, and it 
was he who set the police straight that he was out there, 
that he asked Kirby Bunch who shot him, and Kirby Bunch said: 
Dennis. It was right from Kirby Bunch's mouth: Dennis.

Tim Queensbury knew Dennis C^r’l-ng, tut he didn't 
know to which Dennis Kirby was referring to that particular 
moment. Kirby Bunch identified his own killer, ladies and 
gentlemen. Kirby Bunch identified the only Dennis involved 
in this case, Dennis Copling. That piece of evidence alone 
is significant.

That piece of evidence alone ties this case togethe: 
There is so much evidence in this case from so many different 
people that the conclusion is Inescapable. Dennis Copling 
was unstoppable that night because he had already made up hit 
mind what he was going to do.
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but he wasn't hearing anything. He had already made up his 
mind, ladies and gentlemen. He had already gotten the ski 
mask from Leervin Hill. They were in a car waiting for him.
He got in the car and he went out there, and we all know the 
rest.

Dennis Copling is gui.lty of conspiracy to commit 
murder with Halik and Fahim; he is guilty of a knowing and 
purposeful murder of Kirby Bunch, Jr.; for causing serious 
bodily injury resulting in the death of Kirby Bunch, Jr.
Kirby is guilty by virtue of the law of transferred intent, 
guilty of the murder, knowing and purposeful, of Mark Hinstonc 

Dennis Copling possessed a firearm with purpose to 
use it unlawfully against the person of another, and as the 
State indicated to you in opening, there is the inference that 
is created that you may either accept or not, the defendant 
didn't have a permit to carry a handgun.

The evidence is inescapable, there is no way he had 
a permit to carry a firea-m in this case.

.“.a is guilty of each and every element of each and 
every offense beyond a reasonable doubt, and it's the State's 
hope thot you will take your time deliberating, that you will 
review all the evidence that has been submitted in this case, 
that you will discuss it among yourselves, and that you will ^in 
the defendant guilty of each and every count.

Thank you.
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THE COURT: Ladies and, gentlemen of the jury, you
just heard two closings, and it will be my responsibility to 
instruct you as to the law which applies tc this case. The 
instructions that I will be giving you are lengthy, as jury 
instructions go, in part because of the number of counts in t 
indictment.

1 think the better course is to allow you to take 
your lunch, to recess and come back fresh, and I will instruc 
you immediately after lunch on the law that you need to delib 
erate this case, and you will retire and deliberate.

Why don't we resume in an hour and fifteen minutes 
at 1:20. Enjoy your lunch. Just a reminder not to discuss 
the closings or evidence among yourselves in the iseantime.
We will see you then. Thank you.

(.7ury excused from courtroom.)

has finished making the revisions to the jury instructions wo 
talked about before. If so, I can give them to you now and 
we can talk about them aoain before we resume.

MR. LEINER: Your Honor, I do have one objection to
the prosecutor's closing. I didn't want to interrupt and

That would be in reference to the indication with 
regard to Nat:^ SinXiions, somehow he was in fear of Dennis 
Copling. I think that was improper in the way .it was pre-
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sented, and I object to that portlsn of his closing.
THE COURT: Mr. Aronow.
MR. ARONOW: Judge, I think the jurors in looking

at and listening to the witness testify, and determining thei 
credibility, can use anything involved in their own repertoir • 
to determine whether or not a witness had a reason to fear.

With respect to why they made an identification or 
not made an identification, I don't think anything the State 
said in its closing was improper.

THE COURT: The Court agrees. The comment that wa
made by the State in its closing would call upon the jury to 
determine what the particular perspective of that witness may 
have been at a given point in tif*». It is in a. certae an 
evaluation of the witness' ability tc reason observe, recol­

lect and relate.

I see nothing that is improper with it. Therefore, 
the Court will not admonish the jury to disregard it.

If you wait one moment, I will have the modificatioi 
I will get copies made, you wait two minutes.

There is one other minor issue. 1 expect that it 
will take me an hour and a half to charge the jury. From my 
prior experience, it may be longer. That being the case, is 
there any objection from either side if i sense the jury is 

getting restleits, I look at them, is there any objection to 
my taking a brief recess in the middle?

. - ' I
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HR. LEINeR: No, your Honor.
hr. ARONOW: no.

the court: X „ixi try to do it aU at once, but
not at the expense of their continued attention.

Any other housekeeping issues either one of you wan 
to bring to my attention?

MR. LEINER: Not at this time, your Honor.

the court: Why don't we move the easel back, so it
is not out there when instructing the jury.

When you get my revised instructions, you will see 
thst in adding the shots were fired by both the defendant and 
F-him, there is a discussion ^here as to what th. jury would 
-o :< ,oun<, .... ... ..... ..... . . . . . . .

........ „ .... ^ .. .

by both shooters.

I think that has to be discussed. The instruction 
tells them if the shot, fired by the defendant did not in and 
oi themselves kill Kirby Bunch, the defendant is legally re­

sponsible for the conduct of Eahim. based upon the instructioJ 
^ have given them previously, and if all the shots together 
KiUed Kirby Bunch, under that scenario the defendant would 
he guilty Of murder, even though the shots fired by himself 
were not alone the fatal shots.

I wanted to bring that to your attention.

The jury is coming back at !:2o. How about we get

ifPlP
Pi



back together at 1:10?

MR. LEINER: Fine, your Honor.
THE COURT: 1 would ask the defendant be back in

the courtroom at ten after 1:00 also.
There is one other housekeeping detail. As you bot 

know, whenever the juror seated in Seat Number 1 has been ex­

cused, then the Court designates as the foreperson the person 
next seated, according to the language of the Court Rules. 
That doesn't mean the juror in Seat 2. That means the juror 
next picked.

In reviewing my grid, I have determined it was —
MR. LEINER: I guess ve should look for the next

one.

THE COURT: It was juror in Seat *, Number 161.
MR. LEINER: I think we should look to Number 2, in

case that person is picked,

THE COURT: You are right, we should in case that
one is picked. I will give you a copy of the revised instruc­

tion.

Counsel, as I indicated, the juror next seated 
would have been the juror in Seat 6, because she was selected 
on the first seating of the entire panel and never replaced.
If she is designated as the alternate, then the person seated 
next was the juror in Seat Humber 5, Juror Number 414. Al­

though Juror Number 414 was not seated on the first seating of
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the jury, she was seated after the peremptory challenge was 
exercised or after I excused a juror for cause in this seat, 
which was done early in the trial.

It would be in Seat 6, if she is excused, then it 
will be the juror in Seat 5.

MR. LEIN’ER: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: Ke will resume at ten after 1:00.
(Luncheon recess.)

AFTERNOON SESSION

THE COURT: Counsel, any comments concerning the
instruction I gave you before lunch, the written version?

MR. ARONOK: judge, the only thing I s«v i* what you
tal)ted about previously, and that is on r»nr : dealing with 
the multiple perpetrator theme, and ifs the State s position 
it wouldn't matter which bullet was fatal, and I don't think 
Dr. Catherman said which one was, because his testimony was 
that he died as a result of three gunshot wounds.

THE COURT: He sc: .d one of them could be fatal by
itself.

o ■ " %k]
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with what I have written here, though? I don’t think it is.

MR. ARONOW: Okay.

THE COURT: While thinking about that, Mr. Leiner.
MR, LEINER: The only concern I have is under Para

graph 2, the first page.

THE COURT: Give me a second.
NR. LEINER: Sure.

THE COURT: Yes?

MR. LEINER: The middle of the paragraph, the part
of a preplanned attack, the word attack kind of concerns me 
only in the sense that if there was a scenario where it was 
proven beyond a reasonable doubt It was my client's intent to 
go and beat up Kirby Bunch, which was testified to by the 
officers, that doesn't necessarily give him the purpose and 
knowledge to cause either serio'js bodily harm resulting in 
death or to cause the death.

If other people acted upon that and then brought 
guns without his knowledge, and I think the jury could possi­

bly find that, i think th,= word attack may be misleading in 
that sense.

THE COURT: What would you prefer it say?
MR. LEINER: I guess we can use preplanned attempt

to cause seriout bodily injury resulting in death. i would 
rather have th.t.

The purpose and knowledge goes to the klements of
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murder. There is a scenerio where if he did have knowledge 
of the gun, that would be different, but the word attack it­

self is somewhat consistent with some of the testimony given 
especially by Sergeant Forte, in regard to Dennis Copling's 
oral statement, and I am not sure that —

THE COURT: How about if I change it to as part of
a preplanned intention to take the life?

MR. LFINER; That is fine. That would be sufficieii* 
THE COURT: Mr. Aronow, anything?
MR. ARONOW: Ves.

THE COURT: In your comment, Mr. Leiner, you allu'l:
to another possible verdict th,;t may be encompassed by what 
I have given you, and that is if the jury were in find that 
the defendant went to Kirby Bunch's home with the intention 
of assaulting him, but that other people unbeknown to the 
defendant had the intention of murdering him, and did in 
fact murder Kirby Bunch, then the defendant would have to be 
acquitted of murder.

MR. LE-NER: Yt..

THE COURT: Clearly the Court, if the Court is go­

ing to be getting possible verdicts, the Court should be sure 
they are balanced, and that is any verdict suggested by the 
evidence is to be presented to the jury.

In other words, l have to make it an e.-!ual balance.
I think that one should also be included.

' mm I
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MR. ARONOW: I don't see Any basis for that. I

think all the evidence indicates to the contrary.

THE COURT: Well, if the jury were to believe the
first statement made by the defendant to Sergeant Forte, 
that would be evidence they must consider in that regard.

MR, ARONOW: I think if they believe that is what
happened, he brought them there and told them, Fahim, told 
him to bring him back or something like that, if there is 
trouble, demonstrates a knowledge on his part something 
else was going to happen, and that is why he wanted to get 
Fahim.

THE COURT: Trouble meanr. a lot of things. It

doesn't mean shooting somebody dead, it could be additional 
reinforcement to beat him up or hit him over cnc head with 
an obaect. It could mean a lot of things. You are drawing 
one inference.

I see why you would, but I snt saying there are 
other interpretations the jury could give to the same 
evidence.

The words we used were not explicit. Nobody said 
go get Fahim so that Fahim can shoot Kirby Bunch dead.

MR. ARONOW: The only evidence of that comes from
the defendant’s statement. All the other evidence points 
to the contrary, judge.

There is evidence that indicates that a th.rd per-
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son who we know is Fahim was dressed differently than Dennis 
Copling, and there is evidence that third person fired a 
shot and it is not disputed outside the home.

There is absolutely no evidence before the jury, 
other than the defendant's self-serving portion of his own 
statement, that Fahim went into the house.

THE COURT: Kr. Leiner.

MR. LEINER: I would respond in this way, your
Honor. This was evidence elicited by the State. Clearly 
that portion would indicate that Mr. Copliny informed the 
authorities he was going there to beat him up. 1 think it's 
very consistent if there was going to be trouble, that an 
inference is they can draw not necessarily he will bring 
people back to kill him. It was introduced as part of this 
statement.

The prosecutor himself commented on the statement 
in his closing, in regard to what it meant in regard to 
identification, how he placed himself at the scene, and also 
1 think they have in front of them other evidence.

The prosecutor may think that part of his statement 
is incredible, but that is for the jury to decide. I think 
they can decide that themselves.

the COURT: These aro facts to be determined by the
jury. There is evidenn.te in the record from which the jury 
could find that, I agree, they would have to discount

,!.;W
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practically all of the other evidence presented y the State 
but that is within the province of the jury to do.

I will include that possible scenerio as well.
Finally, Mr. Aronow, before I heard from Mr.

Leiner just now, you had drawn the Court’s attention to the 
paragraph that I have numbered 4.

Do you have any further thoughts or comiaents con­

cerning that?

MR. ARONOW: No. I will withdraw my earlier com­

ments, Judge.

THE COURT: Very good.

MR. LEINER: I have one other comment in regard to
the transferred intent instruction.

THE COURT: Yes?

MR. LEINER: The last paragraph, I would ask that
the entire paragraph be stricken.

I think what is contained in that paragraph it not 
appropriate, and the prosecutor argued that. He can argue 
all these facts. I don’t chink we have to retell the jury in 
the instruction that this is where they can find knowledge 
and intent from.

I think your Honor will already be giving them an 
instruction on purpose and knowledge, and also general in­

structions that would cover that area.

When it comes down to the portion of causation.

Pi
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which this clearly is, I don't think it's necessary language
MR. ARONOW: Judge, since I got this language

from a portion of tht Attorney General's brief in State vs. 
w^lock, obviously the causation issue is something in the 
model jury charge, and the Judge in worlock saw fit to add 
this additional language, and this was not determined to be 
duplicitous or in error.

I don't see any reason to strike it.

THE COURT: Can you point me to a specific portion
of the Opinion in State vs. Worlock. that particular part?

MR. ARONOW: That is what I am saying, Judge, it
is not whether approved. They didn't comment on the Judge's 
instruction as being in error.

THE COURT: How do I know the Juagc's charge con­

tained the language you incorporated here?

MR. ARONOW: I can show your Honor a portion of the
Attorney General's brief, where they quote from the transcrifjt 
where I incorporated it from.

THE COURT. Have you had an opportunity to review 
that, Mr. Leiner?

MR. LEINER: No, Judge.

the COURT: If you want to look at it and satisfy
yourself. It was pert of the Judge's charge and not 
commented on, if inadvertently, by the Supreme Court in 
Worlock, then 1 will leave it as it is.

I
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MR. LEINER: Mr. Aronow wants the charge in. It

was a complete charge in regard to that issue.
MR. ARONOW: Excuse me?

MR. LEINER: It was a complete charge with regard
to that issue provided in that brief.

MR. ARONOW: No.

MR. LEINER: That is part of my problem. Judge.
MR. ARONOW: That specific portion that I cited is

in there.

MR. LEINER: There might be language that tends to
soften the blow of that particular paragraph, that could hav. 
been contained in that charge, and wo don't know that.

It says, -It is within your pcx.er that pfoof of 
purpose or proof of knowledge has been furnished beyond a 
reasonable doubt by inferences which may rise from the nature 
Of the acts and circumstances surrounding the conduct under 
investigation."

They also could find that from a lot of other 
people. Telling them, -it r, within your power,- i don't 
want there to be any indication to the jury that because they 
n-ay find there was a particular weapon used, the location,
nature of the wounds, that they have to find these factors 
are there.

It's almct like a listing of factors that are 
and if you add up the factors, then you can find this.

m
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I think we already have a complete charge from voui 
Honor in regard to different scenerios, which is fair to botl 
sides. I don't think that whole paragraph by itself at the 
end is necessary.

THE COURT: I have heard both arguments, and I wil]
decide as I am charging the jury. I will have heard the 
entire charge, and then I will make a determi -ation. I put ■ 
a question mark by it right now and I will decide at that 
time.

MR. LEINER: Thank you, your Honor. j

THE COURT: Okay. We can bring the jury in.
(Jury returned to courtroom.)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, as
you know, the evidence in this case has now been presented, 
and the attorneys have completed their closing arguments.
We arrive at that time when you as members of this jury will 
perform your final function in this case.

At the outset let me express my thanks and my 
appreciation tc you for your attention to this case.

I would like to also commend the attorneys for the 
professional manner in which they have presented their respec 
tive cases, and their courtesy to the Court and for their 
courtesy to you during the course of this trial.

Before you retire to deliberate and reach your ver­

dict, it is my obligation to instruct you concerning the
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principles of law which apply to this case. You will see 
as we proceed this afternoon, my instructions are essentially 
in three parts.

1 will be giving you a roadmap of it as we go 
along, so you know when we finish each section.

The first part is a review of the principles of lav
that I discussed with you, when you were selected about two
weeks ago on the very first day. That review of the principiles
of law would be the same principles of law that would apply |

i

to any criminal trial. That is the first section.
The middle section concerns the requirements that 

the State must prove concerning the specific offenses that 
are charged in the indictment, that h.ave been ttba subject of 
this trial. The middle part is specif ic.il ly to the actual 
charges involved in this trial.

The third and final portion is an overview and dis­

cussion of how it is that you deliberate, what you do, what 
do you consider, what do you not consider, the requirement ol 
a unanimous verdict, and hovr you interact with one another 
during the jury deliberation process.

Those will be the three portions. You shall con- 
side my instructions in their entirety, and you should not 
pick out any pariirular instruction and overemphasize it.
You must accept and apply this law to this case is I give it 
to you in these instructions.

^fi|
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Any ideas that you have of what the law Is or what 

the law should be, or any statement by the attorney as to 
what the law may be, must be disregarded by you, if they are 
in conflict with my instructions to you this afternoon.

During the course of the trial I was required to 

make certain rulings on the admissibility of the evidence, 
either in or outside of your presence. These rulings involved

ques^'.ions of law.
The comments of the attorneys on these matters 

were not evidence. In ruling I have decided questions of 
law, and whatever the rulings may have been in any particu­

lar instance, you should understand it was not an expression 

or an opinion by me on the merits of the case.
Neither should my other rulings on any other aspec 

of the trial be taken as favoring one side or the other, 
because each matter was decided on its own merits.

When I use the term evidence, as you know, we m. an 
by that the testimony that you have heard and seen from the 
witness box, and the exhibits that have been admitted into 

evidence.

Any testimony that I may have had occasion to 
strike is not evidence, and shall not enter into your final 
deliberation. In other words, it must be disregarded by 
you. This means that even though you may remember the test! 
mony, you are not to use it in your discussions or delibera-

Mg——
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tions.

Vou may, for example, have heard a reference to 
flight or maybe the defendant fled. i sustained any objec­

tion to that, so you should not consider the word flight, no, 
is there any evidence in this case from which you could find 
the defendant fled.

That would be an example of evidence that you may 
have heard but you should disregard.

Further, if i gave a limiting instruction as to 
how to use certain evidence, the evidence must be considered 
by you for that limited purpose, and for that limited purpose 
only, you cannot use it for any other purpose-.

vou will remember 1. st week you heard testimony 
from Latisha Fair and Lakesha Buckhannon concerning their 
testimony that on a prior occasion prior to .January 13, 1995 
they had seen the defendant in possession of a handgun.

Vou will remember that .T gave you an instruction on 
the very limited purpose for which you could consider that 
evidence.

AS members of the jury, it is your duty to weigh 
the evidence calmly and without passion, prejudice or sympath 
Any influence caused by these emotions has the potential to 
deprive both the state and the defendant of what you promised
them. Which is a fair and impartial trial by a fair and im­

partial jury.

mm
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Also, speculation, conjecture, other forms of 
guessing play no role in the performance of your duty.

Next I will review with you the concept of presump­

tion of innocence, burden of proof and reasonable doubt, 
that I explained to yr j when the trial began.

The defendant on trial is presumed to be innocent, 
and unless each and every essential element of an offense 
charged is proved beyond a reasonable doubt, then the defen­

dant must be found not guilty of that charge.

If you would excuse me one moment.

As I was mentioning, the defendant is presumed to 
be innocent, and unless each and every essential element of 
an offense charged is proved beyond • reasonable clrubt, the 
defendant must be found not guilty of tha^. char.'c.

The burden of proving each element of the charge 
beyond a reasonable doubt, is a burden which rests upon the 
State. That burden never ever shifts to a defendant. The 
defendant in a criminal case has no obligation or duty.to 
prove that he is innocent, nor does he have a.-iy obligation tc 
offer any proof whatsoever relating to his innocence.

The State has the burden, as I told you, of proving 
the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.

may have served as jurors in civil cases, and you were told 
in those cases it was necessary to prove only that a fact is
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more likely true than not true.

But in criminal cases the prosecution's proof must 
be more powerful than that. It must be proof beyond a reasor 
able doubt.

A reasonable doubt is an honest and reasonable un­

certainty in your mind about the <;uilt of the defendant, 
after you have given full and impartial consideration to all 
of the evidence.

A reasonable doubt may arise from the evidence it­

self or from a lack of evidence. It is a doubt that a rea­

sonable person hearing the same evidence would harbor. Prool 
beyond a reasonable doubt is proof, for example, that leaves 
you firmly convinced of the defendant's guilt.

In this world we k.now very few things with an abso­

lute certainty. In criminal cases the law dues not require 
proof that overcomes every possible doubt.

If, based on your consideration of the evidence, 
you are firmly convinced that the defendant is guilty of the 
crime charged, you must find him guilty.

If, on the other h^nd, you are not firmly convincec 
of the defendnat's guilt, then you must give the defendant 
the benefit of the doubt and find him not guilty.

Next I am going to review with you the function of 
the 3ury, as distingui.shed from the function of the Court.

In my preliminary instructions when we st irted this

r
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case, I explained to you that you are the judges of the fact 
and that as judges of the facts you are to determine the 
credibility of the various witnesses, as well as the weight 
to be attached to their testimony.

You and you alone arc the sole and exclusive judge; 
of the evidence, of the credibility of the witnesses, and 
the weight to be attached to the testimony of the various 
witnesses.

Regardless of what the attorneys said or what I 
may have said in recalling the evidence, remember that it is 
your recollection of the evidence that must and should guide 
you as judges of the facts.

Arguments, statements, re.marks, openi.igs and clos­

ings by the attorneys are not evidence, and must not be con­

sidered by you as evidence. Although the attorneys may point 
out what they think is important in this case, both have don« 
an excellent job in doing that, you must rely solely upon 
your understanding and your own recollection of the evidence 
that was presented befor* you during this trial.

Whether or not the defendant has been proven guilty 
beyond a reasonable doubt, is for you to determine based on 
all of the evidence presented during the trial. Any commentt 
by the attornevs are not controlling.

It it your sworn duty to arrive at a ; ust conclu­

sion, after considering all of the evidence which was pre-
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sented during the course of the traal.

The function of the Court or the judge is separate 
and distinct from the function of the juiry. It has been my 
responsibility to determine all questions of law arising dur 
the trial, and to instruct you, as 1 am now doing, concerning 
the law which applies in this case.

You must accept the law as given to you during the 
inst:;uctions this afternoon, and you must apply that law to 
the facts, as you as a jury find those facts to be.

Now, I have sustained objections to some questions 
asked by the attorneys, which may have contained within those 
questions statements of certain facts. The mere fact that 
an attorney asks the question and insert Z«ct or comwent or 
opinions in that question, in no way proves the existence of 
those facts.

You will only consider such facts which in your 
judgment have been proven by the testimony of witnesses, or 
from exhibits admitted into evidence by the Court.

The fact that I have asked questions of a wit­

ness, and I chink I only did that on one occasion, I asked 
somebody how to spell something, but the fact I may have ask^d 
questions of a witness must not influence you in any way in 
your deliberation.

The fc''t tliat I have asked such questions does not 
indicate that l hold any opinion one way or another, as to

I 1
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the testimony given by the witness.

Any remarks made by me to the attorneys, or by the 
attorneys to me, or between the attorneys, are not evidence 
and should not affect or play any part in your deliberation.

Next 1 am going to be reviewing with the concept 
of direct and circumstantial evidence. You will remember ba 
when the trial began, 1 explained to you that snow falling 
during the night could be proven by direct and circumstantial 
evidence, and 1 told you how that could be done.

I am not going to give you that example again, be­

cause I em sure you all remember it.

For present purposes, it's sufficient to just re­

member evidence may be either direct oi circumstaritial.
Direct evidence, as you recall, means evidence L,*-..at directly 
proves a fact without an inference, and which in and of it­

self if true conclusively establishes that fact.

On the other hand, circumstantial evidence means 
evidence that proves a fact from which an inference of the 
existence of another fact r>'‘./ be drawn.

What is an inference? You will remember an infer­

ence is a deduction of fact that may logically and reasonably 
be drawn from another fact or group of facts established by 
the evidence.

Whether or not inferences should be draw, is for 
you to decide. Use your own common sense, your own knowledgt

■
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and your own every day experience-. Ask yourself is it proba tie. 
is it logical and is it reasonable.

Remember also that it is not necessary that all of 
the facts be proven by direct evidence. They may be proven 
by direct evidence, by circumstantial evidence, or by a com­

bination of the two, and remember also that all are acceptab 
as a means of proof.

In many cases, circumstantial evidence may be more 
certain, more satisfying and persuasive than direct evidence

Both direct and circumstantial evidence should be 
scrutinized and evaluated by you carefully, a verdict of 
guilty may be based on direct evidence alone, on circumstan­

tial evidence alone, or a combination of the tve, iprovided, 
of course, that it convinces you of a defendant's guilt be­

yond a reasonable doubt.

The reverse is also true. A defendant may be foun< 
not guilty by reason of direct evidence, by reason of circum 
stantial evidence, or by a combination of the two, or a de­

fendant may be found not guilty by reason of a lack of evi­

dence, if it raises in your mind a reasonable doubt as to th< 
defendant's guilt.
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the credibility of the witnesses. Tin determining whether a 
witness is worthy of belief and, therefore, credile, you may 
take into consideration the following factors:

The appearance and demeanor of the witness on the 
witness stand, the manner in which he or she may have testi­

fied, the witness' interest in the outcome of the trial, if 
any, his or her means of obtaining knowledge of the facts, 
the witness' power of discernment, meaning their judgment am 
understanding, his or her ability to reason, to observe, to 
recollect and to relate, the possible bias, if any, in favor 
of the side for whom the witness testified, the extent to 
which if at all each witness is either corroborated or con­

tradicted, supported or discredited by othci evideir.ee, wheth* r 
the witness testified with an intent to deceive you, the 
reasonableness or unreasonableness of the testimony the wit­

ness has given, and any and all other matters in the evidence 
which serve to support or discredit that witness' testimony 
before you.

Through this analyris, as the judges of the facts, 
you will weigh the testimony of each witness, and then deter­

mine the weight to be given to it. Through that process you 
may accept all of it, a portion of it or none of it.

If you believe that any witness willfully or know­

ingly testified falsely to any material fact in the case, 

with an intent to deceive you, you may give such weiiht to hi



or her testimony as you deem it is entitled.

You may believe some of it or you may in your dis­

cretion disregard all of it.

There are five offenses charged in the indictment. 
They are separate offense."! by separate counts in the i.ndict- 
mer.t.

The defendant is entitled to have his guilt or 
innocence separately considered on each count by t.he evidenct 
which is relevant ano material to that particular charge, 
based on the law as I will be giving it to you as we proceed,

T.he next instruction concerns the evaluation of 
expert testimony. /. general rule of evidence is that v;it- 
nesses can testify cnly as to facts hnown them. This rule 
ordinarily does not perm.rt the opinion of a witness to be 
received as evidence.

However, an exception to this rule exists in the 
case of an expert witness, u.ho may give his opinion at to ar.i 
matter in which he is versed or has special knowledge, which 
is material to the case, i: other words, helpful to your 
deliberations.

In legal terminology, an expert witness is a wit­

ness who has sere special knowledge, special skill, experi­

ence or traini.-.g that is not possessed by the ordinary juror, 

and who ray thus he able to provide assistance to you in your 
factfinding responsibility.
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In this case we heard fron< Dr. Robert Catherman, 
who is a forensic pathologist and a physician, and also 
Sergeant Robert Toth, who gave testimony in the area of 
firearms identification and ballistics.

You are not bound sucn experts' opinion, but you 
should consider each opinion and give it the weight to whichj
you deem it is entitled, whether that be great weight or I

i

slight weight, or you may reject it in its entirety. |
i

In examining each opinion you r.iay consider the 
reason given for it, if any, and you may also consider the 
qualifications and the credibility of the expert. Remember 
that it is always within the special function of the jury 
to decide whether the facts on which the answer of an expert 
is based actually do exist, and the value or weight of the 
opinion of the expert is then dependent upon and no stronger 
than the facts upon which this expert witness' opinion has 
been predicated.

My next instruction tc you concerns the evaluation 
by you of any oral statement the defendant may have made.
Thera is for your consideration in this case an oral statement
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actually made by the defendant, and if made, whether it ir 
credible, you should receive, weigh and consider this evi­

dence with caution, based upon the generally recognized risk 
of misunderstanding by the hearer of the evidence, or the 
ability of the hearer to recall accurately the words used 
by the defendant.

In other words, when a person is taperecorded ar.o 
the statement is made on tape, then you have somewhat different 
ability to judge it than you would if there was no tape re- j

cording, and if one person is telling you what another persor 
may have said.

The specific words used and the ability to remembei 
them are important to the correct understanding of any oral 
communication, because the presence or absence or chanee of 
a single word may substantially change the true .meaning of 
even the shortest sentence.

You should, therefore, receive, weigh and consider 
such evidence with caution.

in considering whether or not the statement is 
credible, you should take ir.to consideration the circumstance 
and facts as to how the statement was made, as well as all 
other evidence in this case relating to this issue.

If, after consideration, you determine the statenen 
was not actually made, or that the statement is not credible, 
then you must disregard the statement completely. If you fin 1
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the statement was made and part or all of the statement is 
credible, you may give what weight you think is appropriate 
to the portion of the statement that you do find to be truth­

ful and credible.

My next i..struction to you concerns the defendant's 
decision not to testify, anc what you may do and not do with 
that decision.

The defendant in this case chose not to be a wit­

ness. It is the Constitutional right of a defendant to re­

main absolutely silent because, as I have explained to you, 
a defendant in a criminal case has no obligation to prove 
that he is innocent, and he has no obligation to offer any 
proof relating to his innocence.

It is the Constitutional right of a d-fv.'.d-nt to 
remain silent.

I instruct you that you are not to consider for any 
purpose or in any manner in arriving at your verdict, the 
fact that the defendant did not testify, nor should that fact 
enter into your deliberation oj discussion in any manner or 
at any time.

The defendant is entitled to have the jury consider 
all of the evidence, and he is entitled to the presumption of 
innocence, even if he does not testify as a witness.

•My next inslr'-ction to you concerns the fact that 
some of the witnesses who testified have a prior convicUon.

PPfiS
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I 2un going to explain to you the very limited purpose for 
which you can use that testimony.

You have heard evidence that Timothy Oueensbury, 
Ben Young, Nate Simmons, Barbara Buckhannon and Latisha Fair 
have previously been convicted of a crime. This testimony 
may only be used in determining the credibility or believ- 
ability of this witness' testimony.

A jury has a right to consider whether a person 
who has previously failed to comply with society's rules, 
as demonstrated through a criminal conviction, would be more 
likely to ignore the oath which requires truthfulness on the 
witness stand.

In other words, would a person who has viol>ted 
society's rules because of a criminal conviction be more 
likely than a law abiding citizen would be to depart from 
the obligation to tell the truth.

You may consider in determining this issue the 
nature and degree of the prior conviction, and when it occuri 
You are not, however, obligated to change your opinion as to 
the truthfulness of these witnesses, simply because of that 
prior conviction, but it is evidence that you may consider 
along with all the other factors wo previously discussed in 
determining credibility of a witness.

Ladies and gentlemen, that concludes the first 
part of the three sections. I am now going to begin by ox-

r'v “
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plaining to you what the State must prove in connection with 
Count One of the indictment, which charges the offense of 
conspiracy.

In Count One the defendant is charged with the 
crime of conspiracy to commit murder. The indictment reads 
as follows:

On or about the 18th day of January, 1995, in the 
City of Camden, Dennis Copling did conspire with another to 
commit the crime of murder.

The statute upon which the indictment is based, 
statute is another word for law, the statute on which that 
count of the indictment is based reads as follows:

A person is guilty of conspiracy with another per­

son or persons to commit a crime if with the purpose ' pro­

moting or facilitating its commision, he agrees with such 
other person or persons that they or one or more of them will 
engage in conduct which constitutes such crime or an attempt 
or solicitation to commit such crime.

A conspiracy to commit the crime of murder is a 
crime in and of i^telf separat.j and distinct from the crime 
of murder. In other words, a defendant may be found guilty 
of the crime of conspiracy, regardless whether that defendant 
is guilty or not guilty of the crime of murder itself.

In order for you to find a defendant guilty of the 
crime of conspiracy, the State nust prove the followi-ig ele-

•* ■'
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ments: First, that the defendant agreed with another person
or persons that they or one or more of them would engage in 
conduct which constitutes a crime, or they would engage in 
conduct which constitutes an attempt or solicitation to 
commit such crime.

That is the first thing the state has to prove.
The second thing the State would have to prove in 

connection with this offense is that the defendant's purpose 
was to promote or facilitate the commission of the crime of 
murder.

I just used the word purpose, because I just ex­

plained to you the second thing the State must prove is that 
It was the defendant's purpose to pro.T.Ce or f.cilitate the 
commission of a crime.

Let me now tell you what we mean when we use the 
phrase a defendant or person acts purposely.

A person acts purposely with respect to the nature 
of his conduct or a result thereof, if it is his conscious 
object to engage in conduct of that nature or to cause such 
a result.

A person acts purposely with respect to the atten­

dant circumstinces, if he is aware of the existence of such 
circumstances or he believes or hopes they exist.

In order to find a defendant guilty of the crime 
of conspiracy, the State does not have to prove that he
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actually committed the crime of nurdex. However, to decide 
whether the State has proven the crime of conspiracy to 
comnit murder, you must understand what constitutes the 
crime of murder, and I will be instructing you as to that 
in a few moments.

For present purposes, let's return to the crime 
of conspiracy. A conspiracy may be proven by direct evidence 
or circumstantial evidence. It is not essential that there 
be direct contact among all of the conspirators, nor is it j 
necessary they enter the agreement at the same time.

If the defendant is aware that any person conspired 
with others to commit the .same cri.fie, the defendant is guilty 
of conspiring with the others. He neeo not be awar,.c gf their 
identity.

Mere association, acguaintenacc or family relation­

ship with an alleged conspirator is not enough to establish 
a defendant's guilt of conspiracy, nor is mere awareness of 
the conspiracy, nor would it be sufficient for the State to 
prove only that the defendant met with others or they dis­

cussed names and interests in common.
However, any of these factors if present may be 

taken into consideration along with all other relevant evi­

dence in your deliberation.

You have lu decide whether the defendant'! purpose 
was that he or a person with whom, he was conspiring vould

: . ■
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commit the crime of murder, ror him to be found guilty of 
conspiracy, the State has to prove beyond a reasonable doubt 
that when he agreed it was his conscious object or purpose 
to promote or to make it easier to commit the crime of 
murder.

The nature of the purpose with which the defendant 
acted is a question of fact for you, the jury, to decide.

Purpose is a condition of the mind which cannot be 
seen and which can only be determined from inferences, from 
conduct, from words or from acts.

It is not necessary for the State to produce a wit­

ness or witnesses who could testify that the defendant stated 
for example, that he acted with a specific purpose. That is 
not necessary.

It is within your power to fjnd proof of purpose 
has been furnished beyond a reasonable doubt by inferences. 
Which may arise from the nature of the acts and the surround, 
ing circumstances.

It also makes no difference what the person or per­

son, with Whom the defendant -ctually conspired had in mind, 
so long as the defendant believed that he was furthering the 
commission of the cri.me of murder.

In summary, in order for the defendant to be found 
guilty on Count One of the indictment, which charges him with 

conspiracy to comrtt murder, the State must prove the follow-

4’
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ing elements: First, that the defendant agreed with the
another person or persons that they or one or more of them 
would engage in conduct which constitutes the crime of mur­

der: secondly, that the defendant's purpose was to promote 
or facilitate the commission of that crime.

If after a consideration of all the evidence you 
are convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that the State has I 
proven both of these elements, then you must find the defen­

dant guilty of the crime of conspiracy.
On the other hand, if you find that the State has 

failed to prove to your satisfaction one or botn of these 
elements, then you must find the defendant not guilty of the 
crime of conspiracy.

Remember also that each offense in this indictment 
should be considered by you separately. The fact that you 
may find the defendant guilty or not guilty of • particular 
crime, should not control your verdict as to any other cffen^ 
charged against the defendant.

MR. LEINER: Ehcuse me, your Honor. Can we approach?
THr COURT: Yes.

MR. LEINER: I don't need you.
(Discussion off-the-record at sideoar.)
THE COURT: Are you all comfortable? Do you need

anything?

(No response.)
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THE COURT: My next instruction to you concerns
what is known as accomplice liability. In other words, the 
circumstances under which one person ia legally responsible 
for the conduct of another person.

One of those other persons in this case you might 
find to be a person nameo is Fahim. you have heard some 

reference to a per-.n named Donnie Parker or Fahim, who may | 
have been involved in the incident or alleged incident, «hic.*| 
is the subject of this trial. ,

Obviously you did not see Fahim. You should not 
speculate about why he is not on trial here, nor should his 
absence from this trial interfere with your deliberation, as 
to whether Denni.- Copling is guilty or not guilty of the 
charges contained within this i.ndictment.

In other words, the fact that Fahim or Donnie Park. 
IS not on trial here, should have no beari.,g on your deter­

mination as to whether or not the defendant, Dennis Copling,
IS guilty beyond a reasonable doubt or not guilty.

With that preface, let me explain to you now the 
Circumstar-..s under which one person is legally responsible 
for the conduct of another person.

The State alleges that the defendant, Dennis 
Copling. is legally responsible for the criminal conduct of 
Fahim, also i;nown as Donnie Parker, in violation of a law 
which reads in pertinent part as follows:

wm
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A person is guilty of an offense if it is com 
by his own conduct or the conduct of another person for 
he is legally accountable or both.

A person is legally accountable for the condu 
another person if he is an accomplice of such other per 
in the commission of an offense. A person is an accomp 
of another person in the commission of an offense if wi 
purpose of promoting or facilitating the commission of 
sffense, he solicits such other person to commit it and/or 
he aides or agrees or attempts to aid such other person in 
planning or committing the offense.

This provision of the law means that not only is 
the person who actually commits the criminal act responsible 
lor it, but one who is legally cecou..w„ble ais an, accomplice 
is also responsible.

This responsibility as an accomplice may be equal 
and the same as he who actually committed the crime, or there 
may be responsibility in a different degree or to a different 
extent, depending upon circumstances as you find them to be.

The Court wi:i further explain this distinction in
a moment.

In this case the State alleges that the defendant 
is equally guilty of the crimes committed by Fahim, also know^ 
as Donnie Parker, because he acted as his accomplice with th

5N;
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purpose that the specific crime of murder be committed.
In order to find the defendant guilty of the 

specific crime charged, the State must prove beyond a reason­

able doubt each of the following elements: First, that
Fahim committed the crime of murder, and I will shortly ex­

plain to you the elements of this offense of murder.
•Secondly, the defendant, Dennis Copling, solicited him to 
commit the crime of murder and/or did aid or agree or attemp 
to aid him in planning or conoiitting it. Third, that this 
defendant's purpose was to promote or facilitate the commis­

sion of the offense; and fourth, that this defendant, Dennis 
Copling, possessed the criminal state of mind that is rr-quiri d 
to be proved against the pers.on who actually con>rl';*‘!5 the 
crlnlnel .set.

I don't want you to be confused at this point. It 
is the State's contention that both the defer.dsnt fired a 
gun and Fahim did, but right now we are focusing on only part 
of that, which is whether or not the defendant is responsibli 
for what you may find Fahim did.

I v;ill focus later on what responsibility the de­

fendant would have of his own act, if you find ho committed 
any act. Right now we are focusing on Fahim and whether the 
defendant is responsible for Fahim.

1 U'jed the ter.m purposely in connection with the 
four elements of accomplice liability. Remember that a persen
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acts purposely with respect to his conduct or a result theret 
if it is his conscious object to engage in conduct of that 
nature or to cause such a result.

I used the word solicit in connection with the 
accomplice liability. It means to strongly urge, suggest, 
to lure or to proposition.

Aid means to assist, support or supplement the 
efforts of another.

Agree to aid means to encourage by pro.mise o£ 
assistance or support.

Attempt to aid means a person takes substantial 
steps in the course of a conduct designed to planned to lend 
support or assistance in the efforts of another to cause the 
commission of a particular crime.

If you find that the defendant with the purpose of 
promoting or facilitating the comi.iission of the crime of 
murder solicited Fahim to commit it and/or if you find that 
the defendant aided or agreed or attempted to aid Fahim in 
planning or committing the crime of murder, then you should 
consider the defendant is if he committed the crime himself.

Accomplice status can be considered separately as 
to each murder charged in the indictment.

TO prove the defendant's criminal responsibility, 
the state does not have to prove his accomplice status by 
direct evidence of a formal plan to commit a c.-ime. There

’ •* ’ =?■
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does not have to be verbal agreement by all who are charged.
The proof may be circumstantial. Participation 

and agreement can be established from conduct as well as froi 

spoken words.
Mere presence at or near the scene does not make 

one a participant in the crime, nor does the failure of a 
spectator to interfere make him a participant in the crime. 
ll is, however, a circumstance to be considered along with 
all of the other evidence, in determining whether he was 
present as an accomplice.

Presence in and of itself is not conclusive of that 
fact. Whether presencehas any proof, value or means anything 
depends upon the total circumstances.

To constitute guilt there must exist a community 
of purpose, an actual participation in hte crime committed 
While mere presence at the scene of the perpetration of a 
crime does not render a person a participant in it, proof 
that one is present at the scene of the commission of a crime 
without disapproving i* and without opposing it, is evidence 
from which in connection with all the other circumstances it 
is possible for you, as a jury, to infer that he assented to 
it, that he agreed with it, that he approved or he lent it 
his continence and approval, and he was thereby aiding in the 
crime.

Whether mere presence at the scene (roves guilt or

V'
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not depends upon the totality of the circumstances, as these 

circumstances appear from the evidence.
An accomplice may be convicted of proof of the 

commission of a crime or of his complicity therein, even 
though the person who it is claimed committed the crime has 
not been prosecuted, or who has been convicted of a differer.1 
offense, or has an immunity from prosecution or has been 

acquitted.

Remember that this defendant, Dennis Copling, can 
be held to be an accomplice with equal responsibility, only 
if you find as a fact that he possessed the criminal state 
of mind that is required to be proved against the person 

actually committed the criminal act.
In order to convict the defendant as an accomplice 

to the specific crimes or crimes charged, you must find the 
defendant had the purpose to participate in that particular 
crime. He must act with a purpose of promoting or facilitati 
the commission of the substantive crime with which he is 
charged.

It is not sufficient to prove only that the defen­

dant had knowledge that another person was going to commit 
the crimes charged. The Statr must prove that it was the 
defendant’s conrcio;.'s object that the specific conduct charges 
be committed.

In summary as to the accomplice issue, -n order to

Wt-
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find the defendant guilty of committing the crime of mur­

der in Counts Two and Three, the State must prove each of 
the following elements beyond a reasonable doubt: That Fahii
committed the crime of murdering Kirby Bunch end Mark Winsto

Remember each murder is to be considered separate!; 
Also, that Dennis Copling solicited Fahim to commit a murder 
or murders and/or that Dennis Copling aided or agreed to 
attempted to aid Fahim in planning or committing any such 
crime, and third, that Dennis Copling’s purpose was to pro­

mote or facilitate the commission of the offenses, and fourtJ 
that Dennis Copling possessed the criminal state of mind that 
is required to be proved against the person who actually 
committed the criminal act.

Consider the accomplice issue separat:ely as to 
each count of the indictment. Remember this instruction I 
have just given you about an accomplice to commit the crime 
of murder only applies to any agreement that you find may- 
have existed between the defendant and Fahim.

It does not apply tv any act that you find the de­

fendant may have committed by himself.

If you find the State has proven each one of the 
elements as described above beyond a reasonable doubt, then 
you must find the defendant guilty of murder.

If, on the other hand, you find the State his failei 
to prove one or more of these elements beyond a reasona.hle

■ *
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doubt, then you must find the defendant not guilty of murder 
As I previously instructed you, or 1 will be in­

structing you a little bit later today, any verdict renderei 
must be unanimous. All twelve jurors who are chosen to de­

liberate must agree as to whether the verdict is guilty or 
not guilty.

As I have previously indicated to you, you will 
initially consider whether the defendant should be found not 
guilty or guilty of acting as an accomplice to Fahim, w'-.h 
full and equal responsibility for the specific crime-? chargee 

If you find the defendant guilty of the .'(pecific 
crimes charged, that is, murder, ther. you need not consider 
any lesser charges, such as aggravated manslaughter sr reck­

less manslaughter, which I will be explaining to you in a 
moment.

If, however, you find the defendant not guilty of 
acting as an accomplice of Fahim on the specific crime 
charged, which is murder, then you should consider whether 
the defendant did act as an bl-. omplice of Fahim but with the 
purpose of promoting or facilitating the commission of lesser 
offense than the actual crime charged in the indictment.

Our law recognizes that two or more persons may 
participate in the comnossion of an offense, but may partici­

pate therein with a airferent state of mind. The liaoility 
or responsibility of each participant for any ensuing mffense
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is dependent upon his own state of mind and not on anyone 
else's.

Guided by the legal principles, and if you have 
found the defendant not guilty of the specific crime charged 
you would then consider whether the defendant is guilty or 
not guilty as an accomplice on the lesser charge of aggravat.d 
manslaughter or reckless manslaughter.

Remember you would not consider the offense of 
aggravated manslaughter and reckless manslaughter, unless yot 
have found the defendant not guilty of murder in Coo.nts Two 
and Three. I will be explaining the relationship between 
those various things in a few moments.

That concludes my instructions to you on trie issue 
of responsibility as an accomplice. Now I am going to be 
explaining to you the elements of the offense of murder, 

followed by aggravated manslaughter and reckless manslaughter
The defendant is charged in the indictment with the 

murder of Mark Winston in Count Two, and with the murder of 
Kirby Bunch in Count Three.

Count TWO Of the indictment reads as follows, On 
or about the lEth day of January, 1995, in the City of Camden 
Dennis Copling did purposely or knowingly cause the death or 
serious bodily iniury re.-ulting in the death of Mark Kinston.

count Three or the indictment reads as follovs: On

or about the 18th day of January, 1995, m the City of Camden
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Dennis Copling did purposely or knowingly cause the death or 
serious bodily injury resulting in the death of Kirby Bunch.

A person is guilty of murder if he p- rposely causes 
death or serious bodily injury resulting in death, or kr.owinc 
causes death or serious bodily injury resulting in death.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty of 
murder, the State is required to prove each of the following 
elements beyond a reasonable doubt.

First, that the defendant caused Mark Kinston’s j 
and Kirby Bunch’s death or serious bodily injury resulting
in their death, and the defendant did so purposely or know­

ingly.

I have grouped together the issues of Mark KiR.ston’ 
aeath and Kirby Bunch’s death, because the elements the State 
is required to prove for you to find the defendant guilty of 
those murders would be the same. In other words, the defini-, 
tion of murder is the same. j

I could read the instruction to you twice, one for 
Kirby Bunch, one for Mark Winston. I am not going to do that 
There is no reason to do that. i want you to understand that 
you Should consider the defendant’s guilt or innocence on 
counts TWO and Three separately and independently from one 
another, but 1 am combining it, of course, into one instruc­

tion on the crime of -nurder.

Remember that his guilt or innocence should le con-

m
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sidered separately on each of those two counts. Let me back 
up.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty of 
murder, the State is required to prove each of the following 
elements beyond a reasonable doubt: That the defendant
caused Mark Winston’s or Kirby Bunch's death or serious bodi: 
injury resulting in death, and that he did so, as I said, 
purposely or knowingly.

One of the elements the State must prote beyond a 
reasonable doubt in connection with the offense of murder is 
that the defendant acted purposely or knowingly.

A person who causes another's death does so pur­

posely when it is hte person's conscious objec: to cause 
death or serious bodily injury resulting in death.

What do we mean causes a death knowingly? A pcrsoi 
who causes another's death does so knowingly, when the persor 
is aware it is practically certain that his conduct will 
cause death or serious bodily injury resulting in death.

The nature of the purpose or knowledge with which 
the defendant acted toward Mark Winston and Kirby Bunch, is 
a question of fact for you as a jury to decide. Remember 
that purpose and knowledge are conditions of the mind which 
cannot be seen, and which can be determined only by infer­

ences from conduct, words nr acts.

It is not necessary for the state to produce a wit^
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ness or witnesses who could testify that the defendant state< , 
for example, that his purpose was to cause death cr serious 
bodily injury resulting in death, nor is it necessary for 
the State to produce a witness who would testify that the 
defendant knew that his conduct would cause such death or 
serious bodily injury resulting in death.

It is within your power to find that proof of pur­

pose or knowledge has been furnished beyond a reasonable 
doubt by inferences, which may arise from the nature of the 
defendant's acts and the surrounding circumstances, such 
things as the place where the acts occurred, the weapons usei 
the location, number and nature of wounds inflicted, and all 
that was done or said by the defendant preceding, connected ! 
with and immediately succeeding the events leading to ti.e 
death of Mark Winston and Kirby Bunch, are among the <ri,-cuE. 
stances to be considered by you.

Although the State must prove that the defendant 
acted either purposely or knowingly, the State is not require 
to prove a motive.

If the state has proved the essential elements of 
the offense beyond a reasonable doubt, then the defendant 
must be found guilty of that offense, regardless of the 
defendant’s motive or lack of a motive.

If the State, however, hat proved a motive, yoii 
may consider that insofar as it gives meaning to the circuci-
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stances.

On the other hand, you may consider the absence of 
motive in weighing whether or not the defendant is guilty 
of the crime charged.

A homicide or a killing with a deadly weapon, such 
as a handgun, in itself would permit yon to draw an inferenc^ 
that the defendant's purpose was to take life or cause seri-j 
ous bodily injury resulting in death. j

A deadly weapon is any firearm or other weapon, ?

}

device, instrument, material or substance which in the mannei 
it is used or intended to be used, is known to be capable of 
producing death or serious bodily injury.

In your deliberation you may consider the weapon 
used and the manner and circumstances of the killing, and if 
you are satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that the dofcndar 
shot and killed Mark Winston and/or Kirby Bunch with a gun, 
you may draw an inference from the weapon used, that is, the 
gun, and from the manner and circumstances of the killing in 
order to decide what the defendant s purpose or knowledge 
was.

The other element the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt is that the defendant caused the death of 
Mark Winston, in connection with Count Two, and Kirby Bunch, 
in connection with Count Three, or that the defendant caured 
serious bodily in:ury resulting in the death of those persons.

‘A 4':
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What do we mean by serious bodily injury? Serious 
bodily injury means bodily injury which creates a s'.bstantia 
risk of death or which causes serious, permanent disfigure­

ment, or protracted loss or impairment of the function of anj 
bodily member or organ.

Whether the killing is committ ed purposely :ir know­

ingly, causing death or serious bodily injury resulting in 
death, must be within hte design or contemplation of the 
defendant.

1 said causing death. Causation has a special 
.meaning under the law. To establish causation, in other 
words, to establish that the defendant's conduct brought 
a: tut a certain result, the State must prove two elements, 
each beyond a reasonable doubt.

First, that but for the defendant's conduct, mark 
Winston and Kirby Bunch would not have died.

Second, that Mark Winston's and Kirby Bunch's death 
must have been within the design or contemplation of the 
defendant. If not, it must involve the same kind of injury 
or harm as that which the defendant did contemplate, and it 
must also not be too remote, too accidental in its occurrence 
or too dependent on another's volitional act to have a just 
bearing on the defendant's liability.

In other words, the State must prove beyond a ro.aso 
able doubt that Mark Winston's and Kirby Bunch's death was
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not so unexpected or unusual that it would be unjust to find 
the defendant guilty of murder.

If you find the State has proven bey^ind a reason­

able doubt that the defendant purposely or knowingly caused 
the death or serious bodily injury resulting in death, then 
you must find the defendant guilty of murder.

If, on the other hand, you determine that the Stat< 
has not prjven beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant 
purposely or knowingly caused death or serious bodily in^uTy 
resulting in death, then you must find him not guilty of 
murder, and go on to consider whether the defendant should 
be convicted of the crimes of aggravated or reckless man­

slaughter.

The indictment, as you know, chargee the defendant 
with murder. It does not charge him with aggravated man­

slaughter and reckless manslaughter. You may be wondering 
why these concepts are introduced into the case. I will ex­

plain to you why I am giving you an instruction on those 
other charges.

Whenever there is a possibility from the evidence 
that the defendant may be not guilty of the crime charged in 
the indictment, but he might be guilty of some lesser included 
offense, then it is the obligation of the judge to give you 
an instruction on thc;>e lesser included offenses.

The fact that I am giving you the instruction on tl^

, £i-, ■ ■
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those and not nrnrder. What I think about the case has no 
bearing on what you think about the case. The fact I will 
give you the charge doesn't mean I think they are justified
or not justified by the evidence, in terms of what your ver­

dict should be.

That having been said, if you find the defendant 
not guilty of murder, you should go or. to consider the ies.se^ 
included offense of aggravated manslaughter and reckless 
manslaughter. Let me start with aggravated manslauohter.

A person is guilty of aggravated manslaughter if 
he recklessly causes the death of another person under cir­

cumstances manifesting extreme indifference to human l..fe-.

Let me try and focus your attention o.- -l,„t some 
of the main differences are between murder and aggravated 
manslaughter.

under the criminal law a person's conduct is 
Judged in part by what their state of mind is. If a person 
is Simply careless, then that is ehe responsibility of some­

body in the Civil court. For a person to be found guilty of 
a criminal offense, their conduct must be either purposeful
or knowing or r.ckl. . . . .  there are other things not perti­

nent to this trial.

In order for • person to be found guilty of murder 
a. I already explained to you, they must either purposely or

rV'',. i-v
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knowingly cause the death of another peirsoin.

If you find the defendant did not act purposely or 
knowingly, then you would go on to consider wtiether he 
acted recklessly. Recklessly is part of both aggravated 
manslaughter and reckless manslaughter.

For now we are focusing on a different state of 
mind, not purposely, not knowingly, but instead recklessly.

A person is guilty of aggravated manslaughter if 
he recklessly causes the death of another person under cir­

cumstances manifesting extreme indifference to human life.
In order for you to find the defendant guilty of 

aggravated manslaughter, the State iP required to prove each 
of the following elements beyond a reasur.able .IwUbt.

First, that the defendant caused thp dejth of Mark 
Winston in connection with Count Two, or in connection with 
Count Three the death of Kirby Bunch;

Two, that the defendant did so recklessly;
Three, that the defendant did so under circumstanci 

manifesting extreme indifferenc^^^ to human life.

One element the State must prove beyond a reason­

able doubt is that the defendant acted recklessly.

A person who causes another's death does so reck­

lessly when he is aware of and consciously disregards a sub­

stantial and unjustifiabJo risk that death will result from 
his conduct.
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The risk must be of such a natuite and degree that, 
considering the nature and purpose of the defendant's con­

duct and the circumstances known to the defendant, his dis­

regard of that risk is a gross deviation from the standard 
of conduct that a reasonable person would follow in the same 
situation.

In other words, you must find the defendant was 
aware of anil consciously disregarded the risk of causing 
death. If you find that the defendant was aware of and dis­

regarded the risk of causing death, you must determine whether 
the risk that he disregarded was substantial and unjustifiable.

In doing so, you must consider the nature and pur­

pose of the defendant's conduct, and the circum-»*nces ICiOwm 
1.0 the defendant, and you must determine whether, in light ol 
those factors, his disregard of that risk was a gross devia­

tion from the conduct a reasonable person would have observed 
in the defendant's situation.

Another element the State must prove beyond a rea­

sonable doubt in connection with "he charge of aggravated 
manslaughter is thu',. the defendant acted under circumstances 
manifesting extreme indifference to human life.

The phrase under circumstances manifesting extreme 
indifference to humcn life, does not focus on the defendant's 

of mind, but rather on the circumstances under which 
you find he acted.

^ O '■■-i.y- :



Trial 133

If, in licht of all the evidence, you find the 
defendant’s conduct resulted in a probability as opposed to 
a mere possibility of death, then you may find he acted unde 
circumstances manifesting extreme indifference to human life

On the other hand, if you find that his conduct 
resulted in only a possibility of death, then you must find 
him not guilty of aggravated manslaughter and then go on to 
consider the offense of reckless manslaughter, which I will 
explain in a minute.

The final element the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt in connection with the charge of aggravated 
manslaughter is that the defendant caused the death in Count 
Tv;o of Mark Winston, and Count Three of Kirby Bunch. In 
other words, you must find that the person in ques'.io,-. v-ould 
not have died but for the defendant’s conduct.

If, after a consideration of all the evidence, you 
are convinced beyond a reasonable doubt the defendant reck­

lessly caused the death of Mark Winston, or the death of 
Kirby Bunch, as the case may be, under circumstances mani­

festing extreme indifference to human life, then your verdict 
should be guilty of aggravated manslaughter.

Remember that you would not be considering aggra­

vated manslaughter un’ess you have the defendant not guilty 
of the crime of murder.

If, however, after a consideration of all the ev.'-

> , . .1
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dence you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that 
the defendar. recklessly caused the death under circumstance 
manifesting extreme indifference to human life, then you mus 
find the defendant not guilty of aggravated manslaughter and 
go on to consider the charge of reckless manslaughter.

Let me now explain what we mean by reckless man- j 
slaughter. A person is guilty of rrckless manslaughter if 1 
he recklessly causes the death of another person.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty of 
reckless manslaughter, the State is required to prove each 
of the following elements beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that the defendant caused the death of the 
person in question, whether it be Mark Winston or Kirbv 
Bunch, and that he did so recklessly.

Therefore, the state must prove beyond a reasonabl 
doubt in connection with the charge of reckless mausiaughter 
that the defendant acted recklessly. As I explained to you, 
a person who causes another’s death does so recklessly when 
he is aware of and consciously disregards a substantial and 
unjustifiable risk that death wUl result from his conduct.

The risk must be of such a nature and degree that, 
considering the nature and purpose of the defendant’s con­

duct and the circumstances known to the defendant, his dis­

regard of that risk is a gross deviation from the standard 
of conduct that a reasonable person would follow in th.? same

iiir \ i
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situation.

In other words, >-ou must find that the defendant 
was aware of and consciously disregarded the risk of causing 
death. If you find that the defendant was aware of and dis­

regarded the risk of causing death, you must determine wheth 
that risk that he disregarded was substantialenJvr.justifiabl

In doing sO: you must comider the nature and pur­

pose of the defendant's conduct, and the circumstances known 
to him, and you must determine whether in light of these 
factors, his disregard of that risk was a gross deviation 
from the conduct a reasonable person would have observed in 
the defendant's situation.

The other element the State must prove in connec­

tion with reckless manslaughter is that the defendant caused 
the death of the person in question, whether that be Kirby 
Bunch or Mark Winston.

In other words, you must find that person would no' 
have died but for the defendant's conduct.

If, after consideration of all the evidence, you 
are convinced bc>and a reasonaole doubt that the defendant 
recklessly caused the death of the person in question, then 
your verdict should be guilty of reckless manslaughter.

If, however, after consideration of all the evi­

dence you are not convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that 
the defendant recklessly caused the death of Kirby Btnch or

i- w
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Mark Winston, as the case may be, then you must find him not 
guilty of reckless manslaughter.

1 have quite a bit more to explain. I think it 
might not be a bad idea to take a short break. As I look at 
you, some of you are starting to stir a bit. i would like 
to take a ten minute recess.

you haven't heard hte instructions in their en­

tirety. YOU should not deliberate or discuss the instr-uction
or evidence. We will resume in ten minutes. i will see you 
then.

(Jury excused from courtroom.)

MR. ARONOW: Judge, before we leave the courtroom,
I would like to raise an issue.

Earlier in the trial Mr. Lciner brought up to me 
something I didn't observe earlier. Juror Number U. the 
person in the back row i„ the corner was sleeping. Kell, i 
noticed it in my closing, and then I noticed Don having the 
juror rustled up during your Honor's instruction.

the COURT: That as done at my instruction. i

don't know if you could tell that I told Trade to tell Don 
to do that.

MR. LEINER: I suspected that.

XR. ARONOW: That concerns me a great deal. i am

watching him thrcgheat your Honor's instruction, .-.nd he is 
90ing in and out. I don't know if he is paying attention or
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not. He appears to be clearly drowsy.

THE COURT. It’s fifty/fifty. I don’t know if it 
is anywhere near that. There are times he closes his eyes 
for a few brief seconds. Whether awake behind the closed 
eyes, I don’t know.

VTiat er3 yo-j asking the Court to do about it? I have 
done what I can do. Each time I see it, I can get Don to 
prod him in some way.

MR. ARONOW: Judge, if the juror is not paying
attention at any part of the trial and it is a repeated 
problem. I think there is only one alternative, and that is 
to strike him.

THE COURT; Viell, I don’t know tl'.rt he ;.as heard 
any less of my instructions than anybody elsi has.

Other people can stare at me wide-eyed and are 
thinking about what they are doing or the weekend, and 1 hav< 
no way of knowing that. I don’t know that I have a greater 
reason to think there is a problem with him than anybody 
else. Actually it has only been, in ny opinion, only been 
a very, very small percentage of the time.

I will talk to Don about it.

We have now taken a break, and what I will ask Mr. 
Murray to do is come around over to a different portion of 
the courtroom, so that he can see that juror, beccuse from 
where he was standing the wall was in the way, he couldn’t



see him.

I asked that he come over there, and then if he 
observes him or anybody else appearing to dote off, he can 
then give hir. water and ask another juror to shake the juror 
in question.

I will reiterate that Instruction.
Let me see it .Mr. Leiner has a comment on the

issue.

MR. LEINER: I did bring that to Mr. Aronow's
attention. My reason is not as easy as your Honor is 
grappling with.

When brought to my attention through someone else,
I looked at him and he appeared to have hie eyesi cloised. At 
times it was hard to tell whether his eyes veie closed, 
whether he was not listening, whether other times his eyes 
would be open. 1 diu notice his eyes open and close some 
time like that. I don't know whether that is just his 
demeanor or not. It's much more difficult for me to tell.

THE COURT: 1 ha-e teen people sleep where it's
clear they are sleeping, with this fellow it is not so 
clear to me that he is. It is very brief, and I am not 
really sure.

.MR. ARONOW 
charge or portions o

Missing portions of your Honor's 
the testimony, or what portions of any

other part of the case, is essential in the State's opinion

I’l'-
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that as a juror at least appear to remain attentive, and it' 
not just one time that it was brought to my attention. It 
has been a multiple of times.

THE COURT. Nobody has discussed it on the record 
before now. I don't know how many multiple times there were 
It wasn't brought to the Court's attention.

MR. ARONOW; Number One, I didn't notice it. when 
-Mr. -einer brought it to my attention. He did bring it to m; 
attention.

Number Two, I noticed it during my closing. That 
was the first time I looked directly at him.

Number Three, I noticed when Don went over, I 
noticed the juror tussling with him to g_i him lOj..

THE COURT: I think that is a bit of an overstate­

ment. She tapped him and he opened his eyes. It didn't 
take tussling or anything like that. It was a tap and he 
woke up or sat up differently. I don't know what he was 
doing with his eyes.

if you would lik. , we can bring him in. All I am 
saying is ii is not clear to me that everyone who has their 
eyes down are sleeping. People do that to concentrate 
better or just for a lot of reasons. I am not sure he is 
sleeping. His overall look was not necessarily consistent 
with sleeping. Maybe he wasn't. I am not sure.

Is there any objection? The State is requesting

i
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Winston, which is based on the violation of a law, and that 
law reads as follows: A defendant shall not be relieved of
responsibility for causing a result if the only difference 
between what actually occurred and what was designed, con­

templated or risked is that a different person was injured 
or affected.

What that means is that if Dennis Copling purposel 
or knowingly killed or caused serious bodily injury resultin 
in the death of Kirby Bunch, Jr., that result must have been 
within his design or contemplation.

It is, however, not necessary for the death of 
Mark Winston to have been within Dennis Copling's design or 
contemplation, so long as the death of Mark Wxuston unvojived 
the same kind of injury or harm as that which was designed 
or contemplated as to Kirby Bunch.

To put it another way, Dennis Copling coulJ be 
found guilty of the knowing and purposeful death cf Mark 
Winston, even if Kirby Bunch was the intended victim, as 
long as you find that the killing of Mark Winston involved 
the same kind of injury that Dennis Copling designed or 
contemplated against Kirby Bunch, Jr., and as long as you 
find the killing of Mark Kinston was not too remote or acci­

dental in its occurrence, nor too dependent on another's 
voluntary act to maw£ it unfair to find Dennis Coplim re­

sponsible for it.

.''ir':
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The State says there was . purposeful or knowing 
hilling or causing of serious bodily injury resulting i„ the 
death of Kirby Bunch, Jr., and because of the law that I hav 
j>^st explained to you, the State says there was also a pur ' 
Poseful or knowing killing or causing of serious bodily in­

jury resulting in the death of Mark Winston.

The nature of the purpose or knowledge with which 
the defendant acted towards each deceased person is a gues- 
tion of feet for you to decide.

Purpose and knowledge are, a. I already explained 
to you, condition, of the „ind which we cannot see and we 
can only detennine by inferences from word, or acts.

It is not necessary for the state to produce . 
-tness Who can testify rhat a defend. . . .  ^

.--pose to cause death or serious bodily injury r.sultinc in 
aeath.. nor is it necessary for the State to prove -.hat he 
knew his conduct was going to kill the victim.

It is within your power to find that proof of . 
purpose or proof of knowledge ha. been furnished beyond .

o! .».

Of Kirby Bunch, Jr. and Mark Kinston.

su.-:k Ci- c,,mstancas include the place where the 
acts oc-nrred. the weapons used, the location, number and 
nature of wound, inflicted, and all that. . . . fa or don.

^I|g¥ mm
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with or by th. defendant preceding the death of Kirby Bunch,
Jr. and Mark Kinston.

That concludes my instructions to you on the Doctr ne 
of Transferred Intent concerning hte death of Mark Winston.

1 have now completed the instructions on Counts 
Two and Three which charge murder, sa well as the lesser 
included offenses of aggravated manslaughter and reckless 
manslaughter.

What 1 am going to do now is just review with you 
the possible verdicts that could be reached, baoed upon how 
you find the facts to be. After that I am going to go on to 
explain to you Counts Four and Five of the indictment. Lest 
you be worried, these explanations are far more brief that I 
have already given you.

Let me explain to you what some of the possible 
verdicts could be. If you find beyond a reasonable dcibt thi 
the defendant, Dennis Copling, solicited Fahim to commit the 
murder of Kirby Bunch, or that defendant aided or agreed to 
Fahim in committing that murder, then Dennis Copling is 
guilty of murder if the actual killing by Fahim was knowing 
or purposeful.

Under that scenario, the defendant would also be 
guilty of conspiracy to commit murder.

The second possibility would be as follows: if yoi
find that the defendant solicited Fahim to commit th* murder

. -mm
. * 1
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of Kirby Bunch, but if you find that the shooting of Kirby 
Bunch by Fahim occurred as the result of a ncuffle over a 
gun and not as part of a pre-planned intention to take the 
life of Kirby Bunch, then you would find the defendant not 
guilty of murder and go on to consider the lesser offenses 
of aggravated manslaughter and reckless manslaughter.

If you find that the actual scuffle between Fahim 
and Kirby Bunch over the gun resulted in the killing of 
Kirby Bunch, then you should decide if Fahim's conduct in 
scuffling over control of the gun was reckless and also 
whether Fahim was aware and consciously disregarded the risk 
of causing death and, if so, whether Fahim's disregard of 
that known risk was a gross deviation fro- the conduct a 
reasonable person would have observed.

If you find Fahim* s conduct meets the reguiJeinents 
I have just set forth for aggravated manslaughter, then the 
defendant, Dennis Copling, is guilty of aggravated manslaught 
If he solicited Fahim to comn.it the murder of Kirby Bunch, 
and If he did nothing to protect Kirby Bunch during the 
scuffle from the risk that the gun ml,ht discharge and kill 
Kirby Bunch.

He would also be guilty of conspiracy for planning 
to commit murder.

If you find the scuffle for control of the gun was 
reckless, but that the circumstances under which Fahim acted

m
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created only a possibility and not a probability of death, 
then the defendant Copling would be guilty of conspiracy 
and of reckless manslaughter, not aggravated manslaughter.

The difference between aggravated manslaughter and 
reckless manslaughter is the nature and degree of risk dis­

regarded by the participants Fahim and Ccpling, and the 
nature and purpose Fahim’s conduct in scuffling over the 
gun.

A^ain, the defendant Copling can only be found I 
guilty of murder, aggravated manslaughter or reckless man­

slaughter as an accomplice if he solicited Fahim to commit 
the homicide or if Copling aided or agreed to aid Fahim in 
planning it or committing it, or if th«> defendant was in­

volved in a conspiracy to commit it.

Now, another scenario that is posfiole is the 
following: If you find that the defendant, Dennis Coplim;,
committed the murder of Kirby Bunch himself, in other words, 
he fired the gun, not Fahim, then the defendant is guilty 
of murder if he caused Kirby Bunch's death purposely or 
knowingly.

If he himielf scuffled with Kirby Bunch and the 
gun discharged during that scuffle, killing Kirby Bunch, 
then you will have to decide whether he is guilty of 
aggravated manslaughter or reckless manslaughter by using 
the principles 1 have elready explained.
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The State contends that not only did Dennis Coplinc 

fire shots at Kirby Bunch, but also that he solicited Fahim 
to aid or assist him in committing the murder of Kirby 
Bunch, and that Fahim also fired at Kirby Bunch.

If you find that the State has proven both of 
these things beyond a reasonable doubt, then you will have 
to decide whether the bullet that killed Kirby Bunch came 

from the defendant's gun.
If you find that it did, you will decide whether 

the killing of Kirby Bunch by defendant was purposeful or 
knowing. If so, then you should find the defendant guilty 

of the murder of Kirby Bunch.
If you find that the shot or shots fired by 

defendant were not the bullets that caused Kirby Bunch's 
death by themselves, but in combination with the snots fired 
by Fahim caused Bunch's death, then you will have to decide 
if the defendant is repsonsible for the conduct of Fahim 
either because he solicited Fahim to murder Kirby Bunch or 
he aided or agreed to aid Fahim in planning or committing 

it.

If you find that the defendant is legally respon- 
sible for the conduct of Fahim, based on the principles I 
have just mentioned, and if you find that the defendant 
fired bullets into Kirby Bunch purposely or knowingly, and 
if you find that all of these injuries in combination caased

-
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Kirby Bunch's death, then the defendant is guilty of murder 
even if the shots he fired were theriselves not the shots 
that by themself or themselves caused the death of Kirby 
Bunch.

If you find that the defendant intended only to 
beat up Kirby Bunch, but that unbeknown to the defendant 
other people came to Bunch’s home with the intention of 
killing him, and did in fact do so, then the defendant is 
not guilty of murder.

T,et me focus on the death of Mark Winston, with 
respect to the death of Mark Winston, as 1 have already ex­

plained to you, the defendant is legally responsible for 
the homicide of Mark Winston even if the actual shooting, 
was done by Fahim, if it occurred during the ourposeful 
shooting at Kirby Bunch, and if the shooting occurred at 
Kirby Bunch was for the purpose of killing him.

In other words, the defendant cannot escape re­

sponsibility for the murder of Mark Winston even if Mark 
Winston was not the intended victim. However, if the gun 
that killed Mark Winston was fired by Fahim, the defendant 
IS only guilty of the murder of Mark Winston if he solicited 
Fahim to murder Kirby Bunch or if he agreed to aid Fahim in 
planning or committi.ng it and if Mark Winston died as a 
result of a bullet which Fahim meant for Kirby Bunch, and 
fired purposely at Kirby Bunch.
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crime.

In order for you to find the defendant guilty of 

this charge, the State has the burden of proving beyond a 
reasonable doubt each of the following four elements of the 

crime.

First, that there was a firearm. |

I

Secondly, that the defendant possessed the firearmj
Thi.rd, that he possessed it with the purpose of us + 

ing it against another person.
Fourth, that his purpose was to use it unlawfully.
A firearm means any handgun, rifle, shotgun, machii e 

gun, automatic or semi-automatic rifle, or any gun, device, 
or instrument in the nature of a weapon fio.:- whi;^ may bx 
fired or ejected a bullet by means of a carf-idge oi shell.

That is the definition of what a firearm is.
The second element the State must prove beyond a 

reasonable doubt is that the defendant had possession of the 
gun. bat me explain tc you what possession means in the 

context of the criminal law.
Possession means knowing, intentional control of 

a designated thing, accompanied by a knowledge of its 
character. Thus, the person must know or be aware that he 
possesses the item, in this case a gun, and he must know 
what he possesses is in face a gun.

The possession cannot be merely a passing control
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that is fleeting or uncertain in its nature. In other words 
in order to possess a gun within the meaning of the law the 
defendant must knowingly procure or receive the item possess 
or he must be aware of his control of it for sufficient 
period of time to have been able to relinquish control of 
it, if he chose to do so.

I already explained to you what knowing means, 
so I will not explain that again.

A person may possess a handgun even though it was 
not physically on his person at the time of his arrest, if 
the person had in fact at some time prior to his arre.-.t had 
control and dominion over that object, in this case a fire­

arm.

When we speak of possession, we mean a conscious, 
knowing possession.

The law recognizes two kinds of possession. They 
are actual possession and cosntructive possession.

Actual possession means that the person has the 
particular item on his person at a given time, and he knows 
what it is.

Constructive possession means that a person has 
knowledge of the character of the particular item, and even 
though he doesn’t physically have it on his person at a 
particular point in tine, he is aware of where that object 
is, and he is able to exercise intentional control over it,
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if he chooses to do so.
A person who although not in actual possession of 

a particular item has knowledge of the character of that iteiji, 
and knowingly has both the power and the intention at a 
given time to exercise control over the object, either 
directly or through another person, is then in constructive 
possession of the object.

Also, you should be aware that possession can be 
sole or join*-. Sole means that only one person has control 
over the object, either actually or constructively, and 
joint means that two or more persons share actual or con­

structive possession of the item.
That is what possession means in connection with 

the charge of possession of a firearm with purpo"- to usii- 
it unlawfully against the person of another.

The third element the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt is that the defendant's purpose in possess­

ing the firearm was to use it against another person. Purpo; 
is a condition of the mind which, as I explained to you, 
cannot be seen, and can only be determined by inferences 
from conduct, from words or from acts.

In determining the defendant's purpose in possessii 
the firearm, you may consider a person acts purposely with 
respect to the nature of his conduct or a result thereof, 

if it is his conscious object to engage in conduct of that
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nature. That is, a person acts purposely i? he means to 
act in a certain way or cause such a result.

The defendant's purpose or conscious objective to 
use the firearm against another person may be found to 
exist at any time that the defendant is in possession of the 
object, and it need not have been his original intention in 
possessing it.

The fourth element the State must prove beyond a 
reasonable doubt is that the defendant had a purpose to use 
the firearm in a manner which is prohibited by law. I have 
already defined purpose for you.

The mental element of purpose to use a firearm 
unlawfully requires that you find the defendant possessed 
a 'irearm with the conscious objective, design o.r soecific 
intent to use it against the person of another in an unlaw­

ful manner as charged in the indictment, and not for so-ne 
other purpose.

In this case the State contends that the defen­

dant's unlawful purpose in possessing the firearm was to 
murder Kirby Bunch.

You roust not consider your own notions of the 
unlawfulness of some other undescribed purpose of the defen­

dant, but rather you must consider whether the State has 
proven the specific unlawful purpose which is charged.

The State need not prove which specific completed ■m
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crime the defendant intended to commit usino the firearm.
The unlawful purpose alleged by the State may be inferred 
from all that was said or done, and from all of the surround­

ing circumstances of this case.

If you are satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt 
that the State has proven each of the elements of this
Offense, as l have defined them, you must then find the 
defendant gui’.ty.

However, if you find the State ha. failed to prove 
beyond a reasonable doubt any one or more of the elements,
a- I have defined them, you mu.t find the defendant not 
9uilty.

That concludes my instruction to you concerning 
Cou. t Four.
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quired by New Jersey law.

The pertinent part of the l.w „Nich the defendant
fa Charged with violating „ toiler .

— as follow.! Any person who
nowingly ha. m hi. possession any handgun without first
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having obtained a permit to carry the same, is guilty of a 
crime.

The crime with which the defendant in this case 
is charged with having committed contains three essential 
elements, all of which the State must prove beyond a reason- 
able doubt.

First, that the defendant had a handgun. In other 
words, there was a handgun.

Secondly, that the defendant knowingly possessed 
the handgun.

And third, that the defendant did not have a permit 
to possess such a weapon.

A handgun is any pistol, revolver or other firt-arm 
o; iginally designed or manufactured to be fired by the use 

of a single hand.

The second element that the State must prove beyond 
a reasonable doubt is that the defendant knowingly possessed 
a handgun. In other words, he must be aware of possession of 
it.

I already explained to you what knowingly means, 
and I will not explain that again. I am sure you can incor­

porate that definition here.

The third element the State must prove is that the 
defendant did not have a permit to possess such a weapon.

If you find that the defendant knowingly possessed
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the weapon, and there is no evidence that the defendant had 
« valid permit to carry such a weapon, then you may infer, 
if you think it is appropriate to do so, based upon the
facts presented, you may infer that the defendant in fact 
had no such permit.

Note, however, that as with all other elements, 
the State bears the burden of showing beyond a reasonable 

ubt the lack of a valid permit, and you may apply the infer 
ence only if ,ou feel it is appropriate to do so, under all 
the facts and circumstances.

If any of the elements of this particular crime
have not been proven to your satisfar-n,, i.

your satisfaction beyond a reasonable
doubt, then your verdict must be not guiUy.

If, on the other hand, you are satiafied beyond a 
reasonable doubt that the defendant knowingly possessed ,

handgun, without a valid permit, then your verdict mutt be 
guilty.

That concludes the second of the three portions of 
»y instructions to you this afternoon. The remaining portion 
la brief. That concerns the meth. • in which you deliberate, 
and What you may and may not consider.

First let me remind you of something which 1 spoke 
Of .any times during the earlier portions of this trial, and 
that IS the nature of an indictment.

AS you remember, the defendant stands before you on
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a five count indictment. The indictment is not evidence of 
the defendant's 9uilt on the charges, as you heard ine say 
many times. An indictment is simply a step in the procedure 
to bring the natter before the Court and, more importantly, 
before all of you for your determination as to whether the 
defendant is guilty or not guilty of the charges stated in 
the indictment.

The defendant has pled not guilty to all of the 
charges, and the indictment is not evidence of guilt.

Next let me review with you the verdict form that 
you will have with you when you retire to deliberate. The 
verdict form itself is not evidence, but it is simply a docu­

ment used in order to record your verdict repo; t it to 
the Court.

You will see that the verdict proceeds in sequentia 
order, starting with Count One and naturally ending with 
Count Five.

You will see Count One deals with and addresses the 
alleged offense of conspiracy and Count One reads as follows 
The defendant, Oennis Copling, on or about the 18th day of 
January, 1995, in the City of Camden, with the purpose of 
committing the crime of murder agreed with another person tha 
they, together, or one or more of them, would engage in con- 
duct which constituted murder.

Then you would find the facts, apply them to the
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law as I have given the law to you. By doing those things, 
you will arrive at a verdict of either not guilty or guilty, 
and you will then mark the appropriate spot.

You will notice that the way the language is 
phrased concerning the offense of conspiracy, it attempts to 
summarize in a very shorthand kind of way the lengthier in­

structions I gave to you this afternoon concerning conspiracy 
We have done that here on the verdict sheet to assist you.

Ke have attempted to be as accurate as possible.
If there is anything that is present in the longer 

instruction and not present on the verdict sheet, or if there 
are any nuances of meaning in the longer instruction that are 
not contained on the verdict sheet, obviouslv you .mould be
guided by the longer oral instruction ant' not by the verdict 
sheet.

We have done it just to help you out a little.
The verdict sheet then tells you to proceed to 

Count Two. Count Twc and Count Three of the verdict sheet 
are set up identical fashion. As you recall. Count Two con­

cerns the murde. of Mark Winston, and Count Three concerns 
the murder of Kirby Bunch.

Because they are identical, I am going to read only 
Count Two to you.

count TWO reads as follows: The defendant, Dennis
•orling, on or about the 18th day of January, 1995, in the
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City of Camden, purposely or knowingly caused the death cr 
serious bodily injury resulting in the death of Mark Winston.

Then you will record your verdict of not guilty or 
guilty by finding the facts and applying the facts to the 
law, as I have given it to you.

You will see that there is an instruction which 
reads as follows: If your verdict on murder under Count Two
is guilty, then proceed to Count Three. If your verdict on 
murder under Count Two is not guilty, then proceed to the 
next section, aggravated manslaughter.

That is because, as I mentioned to you earlier, 
you would only go onto consider the charge of aggravated 
manslaughter or reckless manslaughter if you fcuud the defen 
dant not guilty of murder. But if you found him guilty of 
murder, then you would proceed to the next count of the 
indictment, and you would not under that circumstance con­

sider aggravated or reckless manslaughter.

If you found the defendant not guilty of the murder 
of Mark Winston, you would, as I said, go on to consider 
aggravated manslaughter, and that reads as follows: The

defendant, Dennis Copling, on or about the 18th -»,y of 

January, in the City of Camden, under circumstances manifest­

ing extreme indifference to the value of human life reckle.sl ■ 
caused the death of Mark Winston.

Then you would tell us whether your verdict is not

-fm?' 'll'
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guilty or guilty.

The instruction says if your verdict on aggravated 
manslaughter is guilty, then proceed to Count Three, which is 
the Count that deals with the death of Kirby Bunch. It tells 

you if your verdict on aggravated manslaughter is not guilty, 
then proceed to the next section, reckless manslaughter.

After you have completed Count Two, you will go 
onto count Three, which is identical to Count Two. The only 
difference is that the name is changed. One is Mark Kinston 
and one is Kirby Bunch.

count Four is possession of a weapon for an unlawfu 
purpose, count Five is unlawful possession of a handgun.
They are self-explanatory. i need not -,d botr. to) you. You 
will have the verdict sheet with you when you deliberate.

Now, my next instruction to you concerns how it 
is you deliberate, what you do, how would you interact with 
one another. Suffice it to say, there is no difference in 
the way a jury i. to consider the proof in a criminal case 
from the way all reasonable people treat any questions depend 
ing upon evidence presented to them.

vou are expected to use your own good common sense, 
consider the evidence for only tho.e purposes for which it 
has been admitted, and give it a reasonable and fair con­

struction in the light of your knowledge of how people behave

It is the quality of the evidence and not simply
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the number of witnesses that is controlling.

Anything that has not been marked into evidence 
cannot be given to you in the jury room, even though it may 
have been marked fox identxfication. Only those items 
actually marked into evidence can be given to you.

In a matter of moments you will go into the 3ury 
room to start your deliberation. Vou are to apply the law 
as I have instructed you to the facts, as you find them to
be, for the purpose of arriving at a fair and a correct 
verdict.

The verdict must represent the considered .<udc-- 
Of each juror, and the verdict must be unanimous as to «ch 
Charge. This means all of you must agree .. the defendant 
is guilty or not guilty on each charge.

It is your duty as members of the gury to consult 
With one another, and to deliberate with a view to reaching 
a verdict, if you can do so without violence to your individ|l 
judgment. Each of you must decide the case for yourself, 
but do so only after an impartial consideration of the evi­

dence with your fellow jurors.

In the course of your deliberations do not hesitate 
to re-examine your own views, and do not hesitate to change 
your opinion, if you are convinced that your opinion was 

erroneous. However, do not surrender your honest conviction 
e. to the weight or effect of the evidence only b.cat.e of

1 ’ ‘ ^
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the opinic . of your fellow jurors, and do not surrender 
your honest conviction as to the weight or effect of the 
evidence for the mere purpose of returning a verdict.

You are not partisans, you .ire judges, judges of
the facts.

As I indicated, the verdict must be unanimous.
That is, the vote must be twelve to zero on each question 
which you decide. It may not be eleven to one, ten to two 
and et cetera.

You will recall earlier when I described the func­

tions of the jury as judges of the facts, and the Court as 
the judge of the law, you will recall that discuss-.on,, I now 
advise you that sentencing in the event of a conviction, in 
other words, if you find the defendant guilty, the defendant’ 
sentencing is a legal issue and the imposing of the sentence 
is something that the Court does or the judge does.

Therefore, in your deliberation you should not con­

sider the potential conseouances of your verdict.

In the event of a conviction, I will order a Pre­

sentence investigation into the background of the defendant, 
and I will consider all relevant facts and circumstances per­

taining to any sentence. It is the judge’s function and 

responsibility to impose an appropriate sentence according to 
law, in the event of a conviction.

Therefore, do not concern yourself with what follow
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after you perform your function of deciding whether the 
defendant is guilty or not guilty.

If during your deliberation you have a question or 
feel you need further assistance or instructions from me, 
write your question on a sheet of paper and give it to the 
Court Officer, who will be standing at the jury room door, 
who in turn will give your question to me.

In other words, don’t try to explain it orally, 
because sometimes the question changes as it is conveyed 
orally. l will go over the question with both lawyers and 
try to answer it as quickly as possible. If we don’t answer 
xt immediately, it doesn’t mean that we are off doing some­

thing else, because I can assure you ansv/erin^ ^our cjuest.ion 
is my sole and one hundred percent priority.

If we don’t get back to ycu immediately, it say be 
because the answer is a bit tuore tomplicated than you may 
think it is. Be patient with us. We are giving your ques­

tion the attention it deserves.

If you do send out a (question, do not disclose wher 
you stand. In other words, don’t tell us that you are ten to 
two, eight to four on a given charge. Frankly, it is not 
our business to know that.

If you have reached a unanimous verdict on each 
charge, knock on the door, let Mr. Murray know that, and we 

will bring you into court as soon as possible to receive your
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verdict.

Counsel, l have concluded the charge. All we have 
to do is swear in Mr. Murray and designate the foreman.

Are there any objections to the charge, as given, 
other than that which you may have already brought to my 
attention?

MR. ARONOW: No, your Honor.
MR. LEINER: No, your Honor.

the COURT: What we are looking for is the wooden
drum we were spinning and using during the jury selection 
process. We put all your names into the drum again, and we 
spin it vigorously, and from that we will randomly draw one 
name, and that one person will be the alternate.

Usually the bo.-, sits right here and it is r.ct right 
here now. I am sure it will be found in a second.

Let me emphasize to you the designation of the 
alternate has nothing to do with the seat in which you are 
seated. It has nothing to do with whether you were selected 
on Wednesday or Thursday of that fi st week. Ifs a purely 
random choice made by spinning the drum. The one person who 
is going to be the alternate is not excused. I will be givin, 
that person a separate instruction, and we will take that one 
alternate to a slightly different place in the back.

The person whche n-.me is pulled as an alternate 
should Please step down from your row, and please take the

■
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seat right there that Mr. Murray is pointing tio.

We are giving it a very vigorous spin. We will 
now withdraw one name from the drum.

(Alternate ]uror selected.)
THE COURT: On behalf of the court system as a

whole, and on behalf of both lawyers, and on behalf of the 
defendant, I want to than)c you. I want to stress to you that 
your purpose *n this trial has been every bit as significant 
as that of other jurors.

I know if I were seated where you are seated, per­

haps I would be disappointed. Perhaps I would be relieved.
I am not sure which. I don't know which of those two things 
you are feeling, but if you are disappointed I wa..t you to 
understand that we have to have a system where there are some 
alternates.

Let me explair to you why that is. Whenever a 
trial does not begin and end on the same day, there is always 
the risk as time progresses one person or another may not be 
able to complete his or her respond, bility as a memJser of the 
jury. In fact, that nappened with the juror who was seated 
at the end. There was an illness in her family, very severe 
illness in her family. This morning I excused her.

If we had only picked twelve people and one or more 
of those people was unable to continue due to family emeroenc 
or something else, then at that point, because the Constita-

W::. .
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tion requires a defendant in a criminal case to have a jury 
of twelve, we then got down below twelve, i would have no 
choice but declare a mistrial. Meaning all the time that 
everybody had spent on the trial, including the witnesses, 
including the lawyers, including most importantly the member 
of the jury, all of that would be for naught.

The jury would not have reached a verdict and we 
would have to ask the witnesses to come back at a later time 
and present the case all over again.

It IS for that reason we selected alternates in 
this case. We had three because of the length of the trial. 
That is why we picked alternates, and if you are disappoints. 
I can understand why it is. I want to thank you very much, 
and as soon as the other twelve people are excised, I will 
be giving you a brief instruction as to what you may do.

The next thing we need to do is administer the oath
Mr. Murray, if you would please come forward.

(Court Aide sworn.)

THE COURT: The next thing we have to do is desig­

nate the foreperson of the jury, ordinarily the juror seated 
in seat Number 1 is the foreperson. The juror in Seat Numbe, 
1, this is not Seat 1. you are Seat 2, that would have been
the gentleman who is seated in that seat who I excused this 
morning.

The Court Rule says whenever Juror Number 1 is ex-

l •
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cused as an alternate or for some other reason, then the 
juror who was selected next becomes the foreman or forelady, 
as the case may be. That doesn't necessarily mea.i the person 
in Seat 2. It means the person who was drawn next.

In this case Juror Number 161 in Seat 6, you are 
that person. Althhough you are not the original person in 
that seat, you were placed into that seat —

JUROR NUMBER 6Yes, I am.
THE COURT; You are the original person in that

seat?

JUROR NUMBER 6: Yes.

THE COURT; That’s right, you are. Yes. you are.
If you were eliminated, the next person would not 

have been the original person in that seat. You are right.
Of all the other people between the very first seat and your 
seat, you are the only person that was seated on the first 
spinning of the drum. You were seated after Juror NumJjer 1, 
and that is why we are going to ask you to be the foreperson

Let me explain to you »he additional responsibili­

ties we ask of you r.z the forelaay of the ]ury, and after 
that I will give you an opportunity to ask me any questions 
you have, if you have any hesitancy in performing the func­

tion. I will be glad to talk to you about that.

The first responsibility you will have would be to 
lead the deliberation. In other words, to make sure thut
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the instructions on the verdict sheet arc tollowed, to sign 
the jury sheet on the last page. There is a signature line 
for you to sign in your capacity as forelady.

Also, to make sure to the extent that you can everj 
body on the jury has the opportunity to speak his or her 
mind. Certainly when twelve people get together, and althouch 
you know each other to an extent from serving on the ^ury

I

over the past few weeks, you don't really know each other i
I

very well. Some people tend to clam up a little bit and not I 
speak their mind very much.

The jury function is best when all of its members 
contribute to the deliberation.

If you si-e there is somebody a bxt shy ^r not speiak 
_ng up, if I can ask you to just encourage tl.ar person to 
speak up and give the benefit of his or her view to every­

body else, that is the first thing to lead the deliberation.

The next thing we ask you to do is report the verdict 
in open court, as soon as the jury has reached its verdict.
When you have reached your verdic-, all of you will come back 
into the courtroom. The very first thing that will happen is 
1 will ask the Court Clerk to please take the roll, make sure 
all members of the jury are here. After that she will ask 
you to please rise. She will then read to you verbatim each 
of the parts of the verdict sheet one by one, and you will, 
of course, have the verdict sheet in your hand. Then you

ite:
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will publicly announce that verdict, whether it be not guilty 
or guilty. Those are the two reoponsibilities you have.

Your vote as foreperson doesn't carry ar.y greater 
or lesser weight than the vote of any other person, nor does 
your responsibility, nor does your designation as foreperson 
mean you should speak less or more back in the jury room.
The fact you are the forelady doesn't change your participa­

tion in the deliberations in any way.

Do you have any questions about the additional 
responsibilities?

THE FOREPERSON: No.

THE COURT; Do you have any hesitancy in performing

THE FOREPERSON: No, your Honor.
THE COURT. Thank you very much.
Next, Counsel, I would ask that you please review 

the evidence, make sure that everything that is there should 
be there, and there is nothing there that should not be 
there.

As soon as you have completed that, if I canRSk yo 
to state on the record everything is in order with respect 
to the evidence.

Ladies and gentlemen, the Court Clerk brought to my 
attention on the final count. Count Five on the verdict sheet, 
there was not a space that said not guilty or guilty, and

I
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just because it would be faster, and because my secretary 
is gone for the day, I will hand-write not guilty and guilty

MR. AROKOW: Everything is here. Judge. We are not
going to just put 42 with everything else. That is the live 

ammunition.

THE COURT: Mr. Leiner, e"erything is satisfactory
MR. LEINER: Yes, your Honor.
THE COURT. We will keep Exhibit 42 separate from 

the weapon. If the jury would like to see the bullets, we 
will exchange the two.

Ladies and gentlemen, at this point you may retire 
to deliberate. You should not start deliberating until you 
have the verdict sheet and all of the exhioits in the jury 
room with you.

It's 3:36 or 3:37. You are not under ar.y time 
pressure from us. Take all the time you need to reach a 
fair and impartial verdict. We will look forward to receivi 
your verdicts whenever you have it. Thank you.
(Jury excused from courtroom to deliberate at 3:36 P.M.)

THE COURT: Juror Number 12, in a second we will be
taking you in a slightly separate room in the back. The 
reason we are doing that is that you are not excused completell 
at this point, and we a::k you to remain. On rare occasions 
the services of an alternate juror are used. That ii why 
you will be kept in a separate area in the back, in th.' event
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that becomes necessary.

In some trials there are two alternates, and I 
would then i>struct the two alternates they should not talk 
to each other about the evidence in this case. You are the 
only alternate. There is nobody for you to talk to about 
the evidence.

Just a reminder, if there is anybody that should 
pass by and have an opportunity to come in contact with you, 
there shouldn't be such a person, but if so, you should not 
discuss the trial or evidence in any way.

If the jury has any questions or when the jury 
has its verdict, you will come back into the courtroom along 
with everybody else for the question or verdict. We will 
attempt to make you as comfortable back there as we can.
If there are any things lying around for you to read, not 
newspapers that would report the trial, anything like ‘•hat, 
but we will try to make you as comfortable as we can.

We will ask Mr. Murray or the Court Clerk to please 
take you back there.

(Alternate iuror excused '.rom courtroom.)
THE COURT. If you are going to leave the third 

floor, if you could let the Court Clerk know that, let her 
know where you will be.

MR. LEINER: Thank you, your Honor.

(Recess.)
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THE COURT: Since it is now almost 4:25, we will
bring the jury in and I will ask them if they need a little 
while longer to reach a verdict, in which case they will 
probably stay, or if they need a lot longer, I will have then 
come back tomorrow.

There was something you wanted to bring to the 
Court's attention, Mr. Aronow?

MR. ARONOK: Only that, your Honor, the gentleman
who was identified earlier as being the husband of one of 
the jurors —

THE COURT: In Seat 6.
MR. ARONOW: Right. He was outside and I don't

know that there was anything intentional --
THE COURT: Seat 5. I am sorry.
MR. ARONOW: Apparently a relative of the defe.ndant

was talking with him and given the fact your Honor addressed 
the gentleman, the juror's husband in open court, I didn't 
think it was appropriate, given that, there should be anybody 
discussing anything with him in any way.

THE COURT: '„hat would >ou like me to do?
MR. ARONOW: Only just Inform the husband of the

juror that if there was anything discussed outside of his 
wife's presence, he not bring it up with his wife what 
happened today.

THE COURT: Or course, he is not here. I am not
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sure where he is.

MR. ARONOW: I don't know if h'e is outside in the

hallway.

THE COURT: He probably is here somewhere. I don't

think he will leave until she leaves.
MR. ARONOW: Correct.

THE COURT: If you can find him, we will deal with

it now before we bring the jury back.
MR. ARONOW: Yes, your Honor.

(Juror's husband enters courtroom.)
THE COURT: Thank you for coming back. I was

aware that some member of Mr. Copling's family was chatting 
with you very briefly in an earlier part of the day. I don't 
know whether it had anything to do with the trial ox not. I 
am assuming that it didn't and it was just a passing conver­

sation.

If what that member of the family said to you did 
have something to do with the trial, I would ask you not to 

discuss that with your wife tonight.
Any qucations7

(No response.)
THE COURT: You are getting tired of me, I am sure.
THE JUROR'S HUSBAND: That is all right. I was

just talking to t!’e gentleman, whoever he was, about mutual 

work in the chemical plant.

mm::
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THE COURT: I am glad. That sounds like a perfect
thing to talk about. Thank you very much.

Why don't we have the jury come back.
(Jury returned to courtroom at 4:30 P.h.)
THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, because it is

now 4:30 I thought I would get an idea from you whether you 
will be able to reach a verdict in a brief period of time.
In other words, ten or fifteen minutes from now, in which 
case it would be fine to stay and continue.

If you think you need a lot longer than that, I 
think it would make more sense to end for the day ana resume 
tomorrow.

Do you have any sense of whether your decision is 
one that you could come back in a brief period of time or 
longer?

THE FOREPERSON; No, your Honor. We would probably 
need tomorrow.

THE COURT: You need tomorrow?
THE FOREPERSON: Yes.

THE COl’FT; We will e.id for the day. Let me again 
just remind you not to discuss the case among yourselves be­

tween now and tomorrow, and also not to read any newspaper or 
other media account.

Also, the Court Rules and Procedures are such that 
jurors are not permitted to deliberate any place othei than

* f



in the jury deliberation room here. I don't know if you 
would get together tonight, if you wahi&d to, the Court 

Rules prohibit that.
Nor are you permitted to get together in small 

groups together and then regroup tomorrow. Tonight, in 
other words, there should be nothing having to do with the 

trial at all.
On that note you are excused for the day. Ke look 

forward to seeing you tomorrow morning. If you come in at 
9i00 o'clock, we will immediately take roll. You won't be 
in the courtroom at all. You will in the back delibera­

ting. We look forward to seeing you tomorrow.
Thank you and have a nice evening.

(Jury excused from courtroom.)
THE COURT: 1 will see you all in the roor.ting.
MR. LEINER: Thank you, your Honor.

(The proceedings were concluded for the day.)
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